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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)
| QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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OR
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EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission file number 0-53713
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subject to such filing requirements for the pastfgs. YESY NO O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥atb site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRule 405 of Regulation ${8 232.405 of this chapter) during the precediignonths (o
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files). M8s No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlearge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated fileM] Accelerated file™d Non-accelerated fileO Smaller reporting compar
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compe

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Brge Act). YES1 NOM
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

Otter Tail Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(not audited)

March 31, December 31
(in thousands 2010 2009
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalel $ — $ 4,43
Accounts Receivable
Trade—Net 117,48! 95,74%
Other 9,71« 10,88:
Inventories 96,83¢ 86,51t
Deferred Income Taxe 11,42( 11,457
Accrued Utility and Co-of-Energy Revenue 11,32¢ 15,84(
Costs and Estimated Earnings in Excess of Bill 82,79: 61,83t
Income Taxes Receivak 50,66¢ 48,04¢
Other 25,25 15,26¢
Total Current Assetl 405,49! 350,02:
Investments 10,27 9,88¢
Other Assets 26,86¢ 26,09¢
Goodwill 106,77¢ 106,77¢
Other Intangibles—Net 33,53( 33,88
Deferred Debits
Unamortized Debt Expense and Reacquisition Prem 10,06 10,67¢
Regulatory Assets and Other Deferred De 124,68( 118,70(
Total Deferred Debit 134,74! 129,37t
Plant
Electric Plant in Servic 1,313,47: 1,313,01!
Nonelectric Operation 375,62: 362,08¢
Total 1,689,10: 1,675,10:
Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortizal 617,00( 599,83¢
Plan—Net of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortizat 1,072,10: 1,075,26.
Construction Work in Progre: 26,16¢ 23,36
Net Plant 1,098,27! 1,098,62
Total $1,815,96. $1,754,67

See accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents.
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Otter Tail Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(not audited)

March 31, December 31
(in thousands, except share da 2010 2009
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Shor-Term Debi $ 110,49¢ $ 7,58t
Current Maturities of Lor-Term Debt 91€ 59,05:
Accounts Payabl 93,954 83,72+
Accrued Salaries and Wag 16,57¢ 21,057
Accrued Taxe! 9,51( 11,30
Derivative Liabilities 21,57: 14,68:
Other Accrued Liabilitie: 12,23; 9,63¢
Total Current Liabilities 265,26! 207,04.
Pensions Benefit Liability 96,25¢ 95,03¢
Other Postretirement Benefits Liability 38,12 37,71
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 23,27( 22,697
Commitments (note 9)
Deferred Credits
Deferred Income Taxe 162,94¢ 155,30¢
Deferred Tax Credit 46,98 47,66(
Regulatory Liabilities 64,68 64,27¢
Other 53C 562
Total Deferred Credit 275,14: 267,80:
Capitalization
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Maturitie 436,07¢ 436,17(
Class B Stock Options of Subsidic 1,22( 1,22(
Cumulative Preferred Shares Authorized 1,500,000&hWithout Par Value; Outstanding 2010 and

2009— 155,000 Share 15,50( 15,50(
Cumulative Preference Sha— Authorized 1,000,000 Shares Without Par Value; antiing— None — —
Common Shares, Par Value $5 Per Share—AuthoriZe@08,000 Shares; Outstanding, 2010—

35,838,353 Shares; 2(—35,812,280 Share 179,19: 179,06:
Premium on Common Shar 249,37" 250,39¢
Retained Earning 237,22: 243,35
Accumulated Other Comprehensive L (689 (1,315

Total Common Equit 665,10° 671,49¢

Total Capitalizatior 1,117,90! 1,124,38!
Total $1,815,96. $1,754,67

See accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents.
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Otter Tail Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Income
(not audited)

Three Months Ended

March 31,

(in thousands, except share and-share amounts 2010 2009
Operating Revenues

Electric $ 9101 $ 88,47

Nonelectric 171,17: 188,76(

Total Operating Revenui 262,18¢ 277,23¢

Operating Expenses

Production Fue— Electric 20,90¢ 18,65¢

Purchased Pow«— Electric System Us 12,05¢ 17,37:

Electric Operation and Maintenance Exper 28,32: 26,93(

Cost of Goods Sol— Nonelectric (excludes depreciation; included bel 131,91. 152,96:

Other Nonelectric Expens 30,77: 30,63

Product Recall and Testing Co — 1,76€

Depreciation and Amortizatic 19,75 17,817

Property Taxe— Electric 2,47¢ 2,49(

Total Operating Expenst 246,19! 268,63(

Operating Income 15,99: 8,60¢
Other Income 13€ 667
Interest Charges 9,03( 6,27(
Income Before Income Taxe: 7,09% 3,00¢
Income Tax Expense (Benefit 2,38( (1,382
Net Income 4,711 4,38¢
Preferred Dividend Requirements 184 184
Earnings Available for Common Shares $ 453 % 4,204
Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding—Basic 35,720,57 35,324,73
Average Number of Common Shares Outstandir—Diluted 35,939,75 35,488,64
Earnings Per Common Share

Basic $ 01 % 0.1Z

Diluted $ 0.1: $ 0.1Z
Dividends Per Common Share $ 0297 $ 0.297¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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Otter Tail Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(not audited)

Three Months Ended

March 31,
(in thousands 2010 2009
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Income $ 4,715 $ 4,38¢
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Casleflis) Providec
by Operating Activities
Depreciation and Amortizatic 19,75: 17,817
Deferred Tax Credit (679) (539
Deferred Income Taxe 6,691 5,481
Change in Deferred Debits and Other As: 27 56¢
Change in Noncurrent Liabilities and Deferred Cig 2,34¢ 1,91¢
Allowance for Equity Funds Used During Construct — (92)
Change in Derivatives Net of Regulatory Defe (1,6272) (809)
Stock Compensation Expen— Equity Awards 61C 837
Othe—Net (52 19t
Cash (Used for) Provided by Current Assets andeDuiriabilities:
Change in Receivabls (20,519 18,48:
Change in Inventorie (10,03¢) 4,072
Change in Other Current Assi (23,550) 9,86¢
Change in Payables and Other Current Liabili 1,171 (33,430
Change in Interest Payable and Income Taxes RdieiPayable (1,599 (6,87¢)
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Operating Activitie: (22,740 21,88:
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Capital Expenditure (17,676 (26,75¢)
Proceeds from Disposal of Noncurrent As: 61¢ 84C
Net (Increase) in Other Investme! (1,000 (2,839
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (18,059 (28,750
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Change in Checks Written in Excess of C 3,251 —
Net Shor-Term Borrowings 102,91« 14,14¢
Proceeds from Issuance of Common Si 55 7
Common Stock Issuance Expen (79 (@))]
Payments for Retirement of Common Sti (262) (160
Proceeds from Issuance of L-Term Debt 95 1
Shor-Term and Lon-Term Debt Issuance Expens (87) (72)
Payments for Retirement of Lc-Term Debi (58,35() (982)
Dividends Paid and Other Distributio (10,939 (10,719
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 36,59¢ 2,20¢
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuations on Cés (233) 207
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalent (4,432 (4,457
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Perio 4,43z 7,56¢
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Perio $ — $ 3,11

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.




Table of Contents

OTTER TAIL CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(not audited)

In the opinion of management, Otter Tail Corpomaijthe Company) has included all adjustments (@ialy normal recurring accruals)
necessary for a fair presentation of the consaifinancial statements for the periods preseritkd.consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto should be read in conjunction withdbnsolidated financial statements and notes asafor the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007 included in the Company’s AhReport on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended &aber 31, 2009. Because of
seasonal and other factors, the earnings for tiee tmonths ended March 31, 2010 should not be takem indication of earnings for all or
any part of the balance of the year.

The following notes are numbered to corresponditalyers of the notes included in the Company’s AhRegort on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2009.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

Due to the diverse business operations of the Compavenue recognition depends on the productymed and sold or service performed.
The Company recognizes revenue when the earningess is complete, evidenced by an agreement mathustomer, there has been
delivery and acceptance, and the price is fixedederminable. In cases where significant obligatiemain after delivery, revenue
recognition is deferred until such obligations faélled. Provisions for sales returns and waryatists are recorded at the time of the sale
based on historical information and current trehd$he case of derivative instruments, such asrGtil Power Company’s (OTP’s) forward
energy contracts, marked-to-market and realizedsgand losses are recognized on a net basis inuewe accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Stadsi&€odification (ASC) 815-10-45-9. Gains and lesse forward energy contracts
subject to regulatory treatment, if any, are def@@nd recognized on a net basis in revenue ipdhied realized.

For the Company’s operating companies recognizrgmue on certain products when shipped, thoseatipgrcompanies have no further
obligation to provide services related to such potdThe shipping terms used in these instanceB@RBeshipping point.

Some of the operating businesses enter into fixad jgonstruction contracts. Revenues under theseacts are recognized on a percentage-
of-completion basis. The Company’s consolidate@nexes recorded under the percentage-of-completathad were 23.9% for the three
months ended March 31, 2010 and 29.2% for the tm@®hs ended March 31, 2009. The method usedi¢ordme the progress of
completion is based on the ratio of labor costarired to total estimated labor costs at the Comigamind tower manufacturer and costs
incurred to total estimated costs on all other toiesion projects. If a loss is indicated at anynpdn time during a contract, a projected loss
for the entire contract is estimated and recognized

The following table summarizes costs incurred allthips and estimated earnings recognized on undeteg contracts:

March 31, December 31
(in thousands 2010 2009
Costs Incurred on Uncompleted Contre $ 328,95« $ 400,57
Less Billings to Datt (295,379 (400,71)
Plus Estimated Earnings Recogni: 42,88¢ 59,20:
$ 76,46( $ 59,06¢
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The following amounts are included in the Comparmgssolidated balance sheets. Billings in excesosts and estimated earnings on
uncompleted contracts are included in Accounts Blaya

March 31, December 31

(in thousands 2010 2009
Costs and Estimated Earnings in Excess of Billmg&/ncompleted Contrac $82,79: $61,83:
Billings in Excess of Costs and Estimated EarnimgéJncompleted Contrac (6,332 (2,767

$76,46( $59,06¢

Costs and Estimated Earnings in Excess of Billmg®MI Industries, Inc. (DMI), the Comparsyivind tower manufacturer, were $75,740,
as of March 31, 2010 and $54,977,000 as of DeceBthe2009. This amount is related to costs incuoredvind towers in the process of
completion on major contracts under which the austois not billed until towers are completed arablsefor shipment.

Retainage
Accounts Receivable include amounts billed by teenGany’s subsidiaries under contracts that have betained by customers pending
project completion of $7,846,000 on March 31, 2ah@ $9,215,000 on December 31, 2009.

Sales of Receivables

DMI has a three-year, $40 million receivables pasghagreement whereby designated customer aceeuatgable may be sold to General
Electric Capital Corporation on a revolving ba3ise agreement expires in March 2011. Accounts vabée sold totaled $10,800,000 in the
first three months of 2010 compared with $38,800,@0he first three months of 2009. Discountssfard commissions charged to operating
expenses in the consolidated statements of incoene $82,000 in the first three months of 2010 caegavith $175,000 in the first three
months of 2009. In compliance with guidance und8CA860-20Sales of Financial Assetsales of accounts receivable are reflected as a
reduction of accounts receivable in the consoldla@ance sheets and the proceeds are includbd Tash flows from operating activities in
the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Marketing and Sales Incentive Costs

ShoreMaster, Inc. (ShoreMaster), the Company’s rivatg equipment manufacturer, provides dealerrfijgan financing assistance for

certain dealer purchases of ShoreMaster producteftain set time periods based on the timingsarel of a dealer’s order. ShoreMaster
recognizes the estimated cost of projected int@@anents related to each financed sale as aitjasiid a reduction of revenue, at the tim
sale, based on historical experience of the avdeaggth of time floor plan debt is outstandingattordance with guidance under ASC 605-
50, Customer Payments and Incentiv8de liability is reduced when interest is paid.thie extent current experience differs from presio
estimates the accrued liability for financing atssise costs is adjusted accordingly. Financingstasie costs charged to revenue for the three
month periods ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 wed@86 and $145,000, respectively.

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Three Months Ende

March 31,
(in thousands 2010 2009
Decreases in Accounts Payable Related to Capitafditures $(62) $(2,197)

Fair Value Measurements

The Company applies authoritative accounting guidamder ASC 820 which provides a single definitbfair value and requires enhanced
disclosures about assets and liabilities measuriraralue. ASC 820-10-35 establishes a hierdrfrthanework for disclosing the
observability of the inputs utilized in measurirggets and liabilities at fair value. The three Iedefined by the hierarchy and examples of
each level follow:

Level 1 — Quoted prices are available in activeketw for identical assets or liabilities as of thported date. The types of assets and
liabilities included in Level 1 are highly liquidhd actively traded instruments with quoted pricesh as equities listed by the New York
Stock Exchange and commodity derivative contrasted on the New York Mercantile Exchange.
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Level 2 — Pricing inputs are other than quotedg®im active markets, but are either directly diriectly observable as of the reported date.
The types of assets and liabilities included indleédare typically either comparable to activeBdied securities or contracts, such as treasury
securities with pricing interpolated from recertdes of similar securities, or priced with modedgg highly observable inputs, such as
commodity options priced using observable forwaidgs and volatilities.

Level 3 — Significant inputs to pricing have litthe no observability as of the reporting date. Types of assets and liabilities included in
Level 3 are those with inputs requiring significamnagement judgment or estimation and may inatedeplex and subjective models and
forecasts.

The following table presents, for each of thesedn@hy levels, the Company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis as of March 31, 2010 and Decembg?@09:

March 31, 2010(in thousands Level 1 Level 2 Level &
Assets:
Investments for Nonqualified Retirement Savingsineatent Plan
Money Market and Mutual Funds and Ci $ 1,614 $ —
Forward Energy Contrac 11,20(
Investments of Captive Insurance Compse
Corporate Debt Securitit 8,35¢
U.S. Government Debt Securiti 251

Total Assets $10,22:¢ $11,20(
Liabilities:

Forward Energy Contrac $ — $21,57:

Total Liabilities $ — $21,57:
December 31, 200(in thousands Level 1 Level 2 Level &
Assets:

Investments for Nonqualified Retirement Savingsine@etent Plan
Money Market and Mutual Funds and Ci $ 731 $ —
Forward Energy Contrac 8,321
Investments of Captive Insurance Compse
Corporate Debt Securitit 7,79¢
U.S. Government Debt Securiti 258

Total Assets $8,77¢ $ 8,321
Liabilities:

Forward Energy Contrac $ — $14,68:

Total Liabilities $ — $14,68:
Inventories
Inventories consist of the following:

March 31, December 31
(in thousands 2010 2009
Finished Good $46,89¢ $42,78¢
Work in Proces: 6,22¢ 3,82¢
Raw Material, Fuel and Suppli 43,714 39,90%
Total Inventories $96,83¢ $86,51¢
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Other Intangible Assets
The following table summarizes the components ef@ompany’s intangible assets at March 31, 201ewkmber 31, 2009:

Gross Carrying Accumulatec Net Carrying Amortization
March 31, 2010(in thousands Amount Amortization Amount Periods
Amortized Intangible Asset
Covenants Not to Compe $ 1,85¢ $1,747 $ 107 3— 5 years
Customer Relationshif 26,98: 4,01z 22,96¢ 15— 25 years
Other Intangible Assets Including Contra 2,31¢ 1,752 567 5— 30 years
Total $31,15¢ $7,512 $23,64:
Nonamortized Intangible Asse
Brand/Trade Nam $ 9,88 $ — $ 9,88
December 31, 200(in thousands
Amortized Intangible Asset
Covenants Not to Compe $ 2,19( $2,047 $ 14: 3 — 5 years
Customer Relationshif 26,95¢ 3,69¢ 23,26( 15— 25 years
Other Intangible Assets Including Contra 2,35¢ 1,75i 601 5— 30 years
Total $31,50¢ $7,50( $24,00-
Nonamortized Intangible Asse
Brand/Trade Nam $ 9,88t $ — $ 9,88t

The amortization expense for these intangible asgas $383,000 for the three months ended MarcB@&IQ compared with $417,000 for
three months ended March 31, 2009. The estimatedadamortization expense for these intangibletagsethe next five years is $1,444(
for 2010, $1,332,000 for 2011, $1,312,000 for 2@12308,000 for 2013 and $1,308,000 for 2014.

Comprehensive Income

Three Months Ende

March 31,
(in thousands 2010 2009
Net Income $4,715 $4,38¢
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) -of-tax):
Foreign Currency Translation Gain (Lo 48¢ (429
Amortization of Unrecognized Losses and Costs Rdl&t Postretirement Benefit Progra 10t 15
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Availal-for-Sale Securitie 39 (55)
Total Other Comprehensive Income (Lo 632 (464
Total Comprehensive Incon $5,34¢ $3,92¢

New Accounting Standarc

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities—In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance onatidiasion of variable interest entities. The
guidance affects various elements of consolidatimiuding the determination of whether an entityivariable interest entity and whether an
enterprise is a variable interest entity’s primbepeficiary. These updates to the ASC are effe@ivaterim and annual periods beginning
after November 15, 2009. The Company implementedytlidance on January 1, 2010 and the implementdiibnot have a material impact
on its consolidated financial statements.
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Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2(-06 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Tog20)—Improving Disclosures about
Fair Value Measurementsissued by the FASB in January 2010, updates the t&3€quire new disclosures for assets and ligslit
measured at fair value. The requirements inclugeded disclosure of valuation methodologies fonfalue measurements, transfers
between levels of the fair value hierarchy, andsgn@ther than net presentation of certain chaingesvel 3 fair value measurements. The
updates to the ASC contained in ASU No. 2010-O6vediective for interim and annual periods begigrafter December 15, 2009, except
for requirements related to gross presentatioredfi changes in Level 3 fair value measuremeviigsh are effective for interim and annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2010. Theempghtation of applicable guidance from ASU No. 206(@n January 1, 2010 did not
have a material impact on the Company’s consoliiitancial statements, but did require additidaal value disclosures in footnotes to
interim financial statements, similar to disclosirequired with year-end financial statements.

2. Segment Information

The Company’s businesses have been classifiegixgegments based on products and services agli caatomers in all 50 states and
international markets. The six segments are: BEte®tastics, Manufacturing, Health Services, Foagtedient Processing and Other Business
Operations.

Electric includes the production, transmissiontribation and sale of electric energy in Minnesdarth Dakota and South Dakota by the
Company’s subsidiary, OTP. In addition, OTP is ative wholesale participant in the Midwest Indepemtdl ransmission System Operator
(MISO) markets. OTP’s operations have been the @amiylp primary business since 1907.

Plastics consists of businesses producing polywhidride (PVC) pipe in the Upper Midwest and Seught regions of the United States.

Manufacturing consists of businesses in the follmamanufacturing activities: production of wind &ns, contract machining, metal parts
stamping and fabrication, and production of waterfrequipment, material and handling trays andidwdttiral containers. These businesses
have manufacturing facilities in Florida, lllinoislinnesota, Missouri, North Dakota, Oklahoma andatin, Canada and sell products
primarily in the United States.

Health Services consists of businesses involvelarsale of diagnostic medical equipment, patiemnitoring equipment and related supplies
and accessories. These businesses also providemezntimaintenance, diagnostic imaging servicegamial of diagnostic medical imaging
equipment to various medical institutions locate@tighout the United States.

Food Ingredient Processing consists of Idaho Raklifildings, Inc. (IPH), which owns and operatesafmtiehydration plants in Ririe, ldaho;
Center, Colorado; and Souris, Prince Edward Isl@ashada. IPH produces dehydrated potato produatsth sold in the United States,
Canada and other countries.

Other Business Operations consists of businessesitential, commercial and industrial electriotracting industries, fiber optic and
electric distribution systems, water, wastewater lAWWAC systems construction, transportation and@@neervices. These businesses operate
primarily in the Central United States, excepttfog transportation company which operates in 4@st@nd four Canadian provinces.

The Company'’s electric operations, including whalepower sales, are operated by its wholly owndigliary, OTP, and its energy
services operation is operated by a separate wbalhed subsidiary of the Company. All of the Comyamther businesses are owned by its
wholly owned subsidiary, Varistar Corporation (\&air).

Corporate includes items such as corporate stdfbaerhead costs, the results of the Company’sweajtsurance company and other items
excluded from the measurement of operating segp@ifiirmance. Corporate assets consist primaribash, prepaid expenses, investments
and fixed assets. Corporate is not an operatingieey Rather, it is added to operating segmenisttiaeconcile to totals on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

The Company has one customer within the manufagueggment that accounted for 13.6% of the Comparpnsolidated revenues in 2009.
No other single external customer accounts for b@%hore of the Compars consolidated revenues. Substantially all of@oenpany’s long-
lived assets are within the United States excapa food ingredient processing dehydration plar8auris, Prince Edward Island, Canada and
a wind tower manufacturing plant in Fort Erie, QrdaCanada.

10
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The following table presents the percent of conlséid sales revenue by country:

Three Months Ende

March 31,
2010 2009
United States of Americ 96.5% 98.4%
Canade 2.€% 0.7%
All Other Countries (none greater than 1 0.% 0.S%

The Company evaluates the performance of its besisegments and allocates resources to them baseatrongs contribution and return on
total invested capital. Information for the busmesgments for three month periods ended MarcB@BI) and 2009 and total assets by
business segment as of March 31, 2010 and Dece3tb2009 are presented in the following tables:

Operating Revenue

Three Months Ende

March 31,

(in thousands 2010 2009
Electric $ 91,08¢ $ 88,54!
Plastics 23,081 13,53(
Manufacturing 78,57¢ 96,01¢
Health Service: 25,17: 28,16
Food Ingredient Processil 18,91¢ 20,08¢
Other Business Operatio 26,30z 31,89
Corporate Revenues and Intersegment Elimina (959 (999

Total $262,18t $277,23¢

Interest Expense

Three Months Ende

March 31,

(in thousands 2010 2009
Electric $5,25¢ $4,011
Plastics 363 20C
Manufacturing 2,46¢€ 1,27¢
Health Service 24E 96
Food Ingredient Processil 37 10
Other Business Operatio 23€ 12C
Corporate and Intersegment Eliminati 42¢ 554

Total $9,03( $6,27(

Income Taxes

Three Months Ende

March 31,

(in thousands 2010 2009
Electric $ 4,89¢ $1,771
Plastics 494 (1,647
Manufacturing (26%) (8049)
Health Service: (432 (13
Food Ingredient Processil 727 72t
Other Business Operatio (1,426 (20€)
Corporate (1,616 (1,209)

Total $ 2,38C $(1,382)
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Earnings Available for Common Shares

Three Months Ende

March 31,

(in thousands 2010 2009
Electric $ 7,621 $ 8,34:
Plastics 781 (2,45%)
Manufacturing (157) (2,090
Health Service: (697) (73
Food Ingredient Processil 1,40¢ 1,447
Other Business Operatio (2,169 (325)
Corporate (2,267 (1,639

Total $ 4,53 $ 4,20/

Total Assets
March 31, December 31

(in thousands 2010 2009
Electric $1,125,51. $1,119,82.
Plastics 79,59: 70,38(
Manufacturing 340,15¢ 306,01:
Health Service: 63,84: 58,16+
Food Ingredient Processil 91,41: 88,47¢
Other Business Operatio 66,73: 59,91t
Corporate 48,71: 51,90¢

Total $1,815,96. $1,754,67!

3. Rate and Regulatory Matters

Minnesota

General Rate CaselIn an order issued by the Minnesota Public UgiitCommission (MPUC) on August 1, 2008 OTP wastgthan
increase in Minnesota retail electric rates of $8ilion, or approximately 2.9%, which went intdedt in February 2009. The MPUC
approved a rate of return on equity of 10.43% eapatal structure with 50.0% equity. An interimgatcrease of 5.4% was in effect from
November 30, 2007 through January 31, 2009. Amaefitsdable totaling $3.9 million had been recorded liability on the Compa’s

consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 200&dditional $0.5 million refund liability was ewed in January 2009. OTP refunded
Minnesota customers the difference between intandhfinal rates, with interest, in March 2009. imd 2008, OTP deferred recognition of
$1.5 million in rate case-related regulatory agsesds and fees of outside experts and attorneyatbaubject to amortization and recovery
over a three-year period beginning in February 2009

Capacity Expansion 2020 (CapX 2020) Mega CertéicdtNeed (CON}—On August 16, 2007 the eleven CapX 2020 utiliisked the
MPUC to determine the need for three 345-kilovkit)(transmission lines. Evidentiary hearings foe thON for the three CapX 2020 3kY-
transmission line projects began in July 2008 amdioued into August 2008. On April 16, 2009 the WP approved the CON for the three
345-kV Group 1 CapX 2020 line projects (Fargo-3oud, Brookings-Southeast Twin Cities, and Twini€&tLaCrosse). The MPUC then
voted to impose conditions pertaining to resenling capacity for renewable energy sources on tle®iBngs line project. The MPUC
reconsidered the original order regarding the digr. The MPUC slightly modified the conditions v Brookings line. As part of the
CON approval, the MPUC accepted a CapX 2020 redqadstild the 345-kV lines for double-circuit cajiilp to have two 345-kV
transmission circuits on each structure. The ctiéan is to string only one circuit. The MPUC C@Mnlers were appealed to the Minnesota
Court of Appeals on October 9, 2009 and the apigetlaurt’s determination is expected to be madaerfall of 2010. Route permit
applications were filed in Minnesota for the Brawys project in late December 2008. The route peionithe Monticello to St. Cloud portion
of the Fargo project was filed in April 2009 andaigticipated to be received in mid-2010. The Mirmt@soute permit for the St. Cloud to
Fargo portion of the Fargo Project was filed ondbetr 1, 2009. Portions of the projects would aésquire approvals by federal officials and
by regulators in North Dakota, South Dakota anddafisin. After regulatory need is established andimg decisions are completed,
construction will begin. The lines would be expelcte be completed over a period of two to four ge@reat River Energy and Xcel Energy
are leading these projects, and OTP and eight atiligies are involved in permitting, building aficiancing. OTP is directly involved in two
of these three 345-kV projects.
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OTP serves as the lead utility in a fourth CapX@Q2oup 1 project, the Bemidji-Grand Rapids 2304k, which has an expected $ervice
date of 2012-2013. OTP filed an application for@N\Cfor this fourth project on March 17, 2008. Thedartment of Commerce Office of
Energy Security (MNOES) staff completed briefingpees regarding the Bemidji-Grand Rapids route peamplication. The MNOES staff
recommended to the MPUC that: (1) the route peamilication be found to be complete, (2) the nestdrahination not be sent to a contested
case but be handled informally by MPUC review, é3)dhe CON and route permit proceedings be contbaserequested. The MPUC met
June 26, 2008 to act on the MNOES staff recomméntathe MPUC agreed that the CON and route peapptications were complete. The
MNOES subsequently recommended a determinatiomted for the line has been established. An enwiesttal report for the CON was
issued in April 2009. CON hearings were conducted/ay 20 and May 21, 2009 and a summary of commeassissued on June 8, 2009.
The CON was issued on July 9, 2009 and the writder received on July 14, 2009. The MNOES issuéd# environmental impact
statement (EIS) in April 2010. Route hearings weskel April 21-23, 2010. The MPUC is expected tced®ine the route for this line and, if
appropriate, issue a route permit in the fall cf@Q0A federal EIS also will be needed for this podj

Renewable Energy Standards, Conservation, ReneWRasieurce Riders and Transmission RidefEhe state of Minnesota has a renewable
energy standard which requires OTP to generateoaupe sufficient renewable generation such theféllowing percentages of total retail
electric sales to Minnesota customers come frontifguny renewable sources: 12% by 2012; 17% by 2@D8%6 by 2020 and 25% by 2025.
Under certain circumstances and after consideratiaosts and reliability issues, the MPUC may riyodr delay implementation of the
standards. OTP has acquired renewable resourcesxprdts to acquire additional renewable resourcesder to maintain compliance with
the Minnesota renewable energy standard. OTP lifisisot renewable energy resources available arskivice to comply with the required
2016 level of the Minnesota renewable energy stahdaTP’s compliance with the Minnesota renewablergy standard will be measured
through the Midwest Renewable Energy Tracking Syste

Under the Next Generation Energy Act of 2007, awmatic adjustment mechanism was establisheddavallinnesota electric utilities to
recover investments and costs incurred to satigfyréquirements of the renewable energy standahdgsMPUC is authorized to approve a
rate schedule rider to enable utilities to recdiliercosts of qualifying renewable energy projelets supply renewable energy to Minnesota
customers. Cost recovery for qualifying renewalolergy projects can now be authorized outside atecase proceeding, provided that such
renewable projects have received previous MPUCoyaihrRenewable resource costs eligible for regoweay include return on investment,
depreciation, operation and maintenance costss tagrewable energy delivery costs and other kktpenses.

In an order issued on August 15, 2008, the MPUCamal OTP’s proposal to implement a Renewable ResoDost Recovery Rider for its
Minnesota jurisdictional portion of investment inaljfying renewable energy facilities. The rideables OTP to recover from its Minnesota
retail customers its investments in owned renewab&rgy facilities and provides for a return onsthévestments. The Minnesota Renew
Resource Adjustment (MNRRA) of $0.0019 per kilowkaur (kwh) was included on Minnesota customerstglc service statements
beginning in September 2008, reflecting cost reppfa OTP’s twenty-seven 1.5 megawatt (MW) windbines and collector system at the
Langdon Wind Energy Center, which became fully afienal in January 2008.

The MPUC approved OTP’s petition for a 2009 MNRRAJuly 2009, which increased the MNRRA rate to fe\cost recovery for its 32
wind turbines at the Ashtabula Wind Energy Certiat became commercially operational in NovembeB2Tbis approval increased the
2009 MNRRA to $0.00415 per kwh for the recoverg$6f6 million through March 31, 2010—$4.0 milliorofn August through

December 2009 and $2.6 million from January throMginch 2010. The approval also granted OTP authtwitecover over a 48-month
period beginning in April 2010 accrued renewabkorece recovery revenues that had not previousin becovered. OTP has recognized a
regulatory asset of $5.9 million for revenues tirat eligible for recovery through the rider but éaot been billed to Minnesota customers as
of March 31, 2010. On January 12, 2010, the MPWG&d an order finding OTP’s Luverne Wind Farm prbgigible for cost recovery
through the MNRRA. The 2010 annual MNRRA cost reag\filing was made on December 31, 2009 with aiested effective date of

April 1, 2010. The MNOES has taken the positiort B&P’s internal costs should be excluded from vecpunder the MNRRA. OTP filed
reply comments in opposition to the MNOES's positi@s of the date of this report on Form 10-Q,MRUC has not rendered a decision on
OTP’s petition for a 2010 MNRRA.
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In addition to the Renewable Resource Cost RecdRrilgr, the Minnesota Public Utilities Act providesimilar mechanism for automatic
adjustment outside of a general rate proceedimgdover the costs of new transmission facilities thave been previously approved by the
MPUC in a CON proceeding, certified by the MPUGaaddinnesota priority transmission project, madé&ansmit the electricity generated
from renewable generation sources ultimately usqatdvide service to the utility’s retail customens otherwise deemed eligible by the
MPUC. Such transmission cost recovery riders ahawturn on investment at the level approved itiliys last general rate case.
Additionally, following approval of the rate schdéeuthe MPUC may approve annual rate adjustmelats fiursuant to the rate schedule.
OTP’s request for approval of a transmission cesbvery rider was granted by the MPUC on Janua®p¥0, and became effective
February 1, 2010. Beginning February 1, 2010, OTiissmission rider rate is reflected on Minnesotstomer electric service statements at
$0.00039 per kwh plus $0.035 per kW for large gainsgrvice customers and $0.00007 per kwh for obiatt service customers, $0.00025
per kwh for lighting customers, and $0.00057 pehKer all other customers. As of March 31, 2010 Q8@ accrued $0.3 million in reveni
that are eligible for recovery through the ridet bave not been billed. In a request for a revenceease under general rates filed with the
MPUC on April 2, 2010, OTP has requested recovérgsdransmission investments currently being weeed through OTP’s Minnesota
transmission rider rate. The transmission investmeril continue to be recovered through OTP’s Misata transmission rider rate until the
MPUC makes a decision on OTP’s general rate case.

North Dakotz

General Rate CaseOn November 3, 2008 OTP filed a general rate cadirth Dakota requesting an overall revenue iaseeof
approximately $6.1 million, or 5.1%, and an intermte increase of approximately 4.1%, or $4.8 omllannualized, that went into effect on
January 2, 2009. In an order issued by the NorttoE2aPublic Service Commission (NDPSC) on Noven#ier2009 OTP was granted an
increase in North Dakota retail electric rates &B6$million or approximately 3.0%, which went irgffect in December 2009. The NDPSC
order authorizing an interim rate increase requ@® to refund North Dakota customers the diffeednetween final and interim rates, with
interest. OTP established a refund reserve formese collected under interim rates that exceedednhl rate increase. The refund reserve
balance was $0.9 million as of December 31, 200fclwwas refunded to North Dakota customers in dan010. OTP deferred recognition
of $0.5 million in rate case-related filing and adistrative costs that are subject to amortizatiad recovery over a three year period
beginning in January 2010.

Renewable Resource Cost Recovery Rid®n May 21, 2008 the NDPSC approved OTP’s request Renewable Resource Cost Recovery
Rider to enable OTP to recover the North Dakotaesbéits investments in renewable energy facgliiteowns in North Dakota. The North
Dakota Renewable Resource Cost Recovery Rider fdgrd (NDRRA) of $0.00193 per kwh was included amtN Dakota customers’
electric service statements beginning in June 2808 reflects cost recovery for OTP’s twenty-se¥énMW wind turbines and collector
system at the Langdon Wind Energy Center, whiclatmecfully operational in January 2008. The ridepalllows OTP to recover costs
associated with other new renewable energy progscthey are completed. OTP included investmeris @sl expenses related to its 32 wind
turbines at the Ashtabula Wind Energy Center tleaime commercially operational in November 200&i2009 annual request to the
NDPSC to increase the amount of the NDRRA. An NDR#2&0.0051 per kwh was approved by the NDPSC analy 14, 2009 and we

into effect beginning with billing statements sentFebruary 1, 2009.

In a proceeding that was combined with OTP’s gdrata case, the NDPSC reviewed whether to movedkts of the projects currently
being recovered through the NDRRA into base rast @xovery and whether to make changes to the Adsettlement of the general rate
case and the NDRRA reduced the NDRRA to $0.0036¢hperiod from December 1, 2009 until the effectiate for the next annual
NDRRA filing, requested to be April 1, 2010. Becauke 2008 annual NDRRA filing was combined witk general rate case proceedi
(concluded in November 2009), the 2009 annualditm establish the 2010 NDRRA (which includes cesbvery for OTPS investment in it
Luverne Wind Farm project) was delayed until Decen®i, 2009, with a requested effective date oflApr2010. As of the date of this
report on Form 10-Q, the NDPSC had not renderegtsiddn on OTP’s petition for a 2010 NDRRA.

OTP had not been deferring recognition of its reaide resource costs eligible for recovery undeNB&RA but had been charging those
costs to operating expense since January 2008. &ffmoval of the rider in May 2008, OTP accruectraies related to its investment in
renewable energy and for renewable energy costsrigat since January 2008 that are eligible forveppthrough the NDRRA. Terms of the
approved settlement provide for the recovery ofaed but unbilled NDRRA revenues over a period®frbnths beginning in January 2010.
The Company’s March 31, 2010 consolidated balaheetsncludes a regulatory asset of $0.9 milliarréwvenues that are eligible for
recovery through the NDRRA but have not been biltetlorth Dakota customers.
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North Dakota legislation also provides a mecharfsnautomatic adjustment outside of a general pabeeeding to recover jurisdictior
capital and operating costs incurred by a publigyfor new or modified electric transmission flities. OTP requested recovery of such
costs in its general rate case filed in Novemb@&82@&nd was granted recovery of such costs by lRIC in its November 25, 2009 order.

CapX 2020 Reqguest for Advance Determination of Bngd—On October 5, 2009 OTP filed an application forad@vance determination of
prudence with the NDPSC for its proposed partiégpain three of the four Group 1 projects (Fargo&Gbud, Brookings-Southeast Twin
Cities, and Bemidji-Grand Rapids). An administratlaw judge has been assigned to conduct a putdidriy scheduled to begin May 24,
2010.

South Dakota

General Rate CaseOn October 31, 2008 OTP filed a general rate eaSomuth Dakota requesting an overall revenue aszef
approximately $3.8 million, or 15.3%, which inclej@among other things, recovery of investmentseaqetnses related to renewable
resources in base rates. OTP increased rates byxapately 11.7% on a temporary basis beginnindpwlectricity consumed on and after
May 1, 2009, as allowed under South Dakota lavanmorder issued by the South Dakota Public Utiitmmission (SDPUC) on June 30,
2009, OTP was granted an increase in South Daktdd electric rates of $3.0 million or approximigt&l.7%. OTP implemented final,
approved rates in July 2009.

Federal

Revenue Sufficiency Guarantee (RSG) Charg&ince 2006, OTP has been a party to litigatiomteethe FERC regarding the application of
RSG charges to market participants who withdrawgn&om the market or engage in financial-onlytwal sales of energy into the market
or both. These litigated proceedings occurred weisd electric rate and complaint dockets befoeeRERC and several of the FERC's orders
are on review before the United States Court ofegbg for the District of Columbia Circuit (D.C. Ciit).

On November 7, 2008 the FERC issued an order araraty and compliance in the RSG proceeding, rewgits determination in a prior
order and stating that MISO should remove the velafvirtual supply offers of market participartsnot physically withdrawing energy-
from the denominator of the rate calculation fropriR25, 2006 forward. MISO interpreted the ordentean that all virtual supply offers and
deviations in the denominator of the rate calcafathat do not ultimately pay the rate should meaeed from April 1, 2005 (start of the
Energy Market ) forward. On November 10, 2008 tBERE issued an order finding the current RSG rajestiand unreasonable and
accepting an interim rate that applied RSG chatged virtual sales until such time as MISO makesubsequent filing of the new RSG rate.

On May 6, 2009 the FERC issued an order on relgeafithe November 10, 2008 order. The May orddeveld MISO from having to reset
RSG payments resulting from the FERC's earlierslenito remove the words “actually withdraws en&f@WE) from the RSG tariff
provisions. Absent this relief (or waiver), the @ral of the AWE language would have had two reléuapacts on the RSG charge: (1) it
would tend to reduce the RSG rate because th@eatminator would include all virtual supply volusnend (2) it would impose RSG
charges on all cleared virtual supply transactidie waiver applies to the period August 10, 200@ugh November 9, 2008. Beginning
November 10, 2008, the MISO is obliged to res®% charges by recalculating the RSG rate and ienR&G charges on all virtual sup|
transactions.

On June 12, 2009 the FERC issued an order on iagezrthe November 7, 2008 order. The June omtear, minimum, relieved MISO from
having to resettle RSG payments resulting fromdiffgrence between the megawatt hours associatibdwriual supply in the denominator
of the RSG rate and the billing determinants asgediwith virtual supply transactions (VSO mismatdthis relief (or waiver) applies to the
period April 25, 2006 through November 4, 2007.c8i®TP would have had a payment obligation dutiigyferiod associated with the
virtual supply and other mismatches, the June cglil@inates that payment obligation. However, theeJorder, like many of the other orders
in this docket, is subject to appellate review potential reversal. Beginning from November 5, 2Q0¥SO is obligated to resettle to correct
the VSO mismatch. As of September 30, 2009, OTPplaadiall its resettlement obligations determined amposed by MISO. On August 7,
2009 the FERC issued an order requiring MISO’s R@6k Force to develop a recommendation on anyaciess that should be exempted
from paying RSG charges. The RSG Task Force hapletad its review and provided recommendationsi¢oRERC. The Company does
know when these litigation proceedings will con@ud
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Big Stone Il Project

On June 30, 2005 OTP and a coalition of six otlhestec providers entered into several agreemantshie development of a second electric
generating unit, named Big Stone I, at the sitthefexisting Big Stone Plant near Milbank, Soutik&ta. On September 11, 2009 OTP
announced its withdrawal—both as a participatinlifyiand as the project’s lead developer—from Bigpne I, due to a number of factors.
The broad economic downturn, a high level of urairty associated with proposed federal climateslagipn and existing federal
environmental regulations and challenging credit equity markets made proceeding with Big Storentd committing to approximately
$400 million in capital expenditures untenable@¥P’s customers and the Company’s shareholderdl@ember 2, 2009, the remaining
Big Stone Il participants announced the canceltatibthe Big Stone Il project.

As of March 31, 2010, OTP had incurred $13.2 millio costs related to this project that it belieaes probable of recovery in future rates
and has deferred recognition of these costs astipgrexpenses pending determination of recovetaby the state and federal regulatory
commissions that approve OTP’s rates. In filingslenan December 14, 2009, OTP requested from g thitate commissions authority to
reflect these costs on its books as a regulatagtdlsrough the use of deferred accounting, peralidgtermination on the recoverability of
costs. OTP has requested recovery of the Minngmwotean of its Big Stone |l development costs oadive-year period as part of its general
rate case filed in Minnesota on April 2, 2010, #mereafter requested withdrawal of its Decembe2089 request for deferred accounting as
duplicative of the issues presented in the rate.cHse SDPUC approved OTP’s request for deferreduatting treatment on February 9,
2010. OTP will request recovery of the South Dalgmigtion of its Big Stone Il development costs oadive-year period in its next general
rate case filing in South Dakota, expected to leel fin the second quarter of 2010.

In a hearing held on May 5, 2010, the NDPSC revikasettlement agreement filed on April 23, 201veen the NDPSC Advocacy Staff,
OTP and the North Dakota Large Industrial Energguprin the matter of OTP’s applications for a deiieation of prudence to discontinue
participation in the Big Stone Il generating pland authority to use deferred accounting. The terftise settlement agreement indicate that
OTP’s discontinuation of participation in the ptj@vas prudent and OTP should be authorized toverdbe portion of costs it incurred
related to the Big Stone Il generation project. Nueth Dakota portion of Big Stone Il generatiorddransmission costs under consideration
pursuant to the settlement agreement is approxiyndfel million. The settlement agreement is oa filith the NDPSC. The NDPSC wiill
evaluate the settlement agreement along with régdissipplemental information in a working sessienty be scheduled before rendering a
decision in this matter.

If Minnesota, North Dakota or South Dakota jurigidias eventually deny recovery of all or any partaf these deferred costs, such costs
would be subject to expense in the period theydasmed unrecoverable.
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4. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

As a regulated entity OTP accounts for the findresfiects of regulation in accordance with ASC 9Bégulated OperationsThis accounting
standard allows for the recording of a regulatayed or liability for costs that will be collectedrefunded in the future as required under
regulation.

The following table indicates the amount of regogtassets and liabilities recorded on the Compaoghsolidated balance sheet:

March 31, December 31
(in thousands 2010 2009
Regulatory Assets
Unrecognized Transition Obligation, Prior Services€@ and Actuarial Losses on Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefi $ 77,99. $ 78,87
Deferred Marke-to-Market Losse! 13,30¢ 7,614
Unrecovered Project Cos— Big Stone I 13,18« 12,98:
Minnesota Renewable Resource Rider Accrued Reve 5,90 5,32¢
Deferred Income Taxe 5,59¢ 5,441
Debt Reacquisition Premiun 4,03 3,051
Deferred Conservation Improvement Program C 2,07¢ 1,90¢
Accumulated ARO Accretion/Depreciation Adjustm 1,90¢ 1,80¢
General Rate Case Recoverable Expe 1,51¢ 1,69:
MISO Schedule 16 and 17 Deferred Administrativet€— ND 99¢ 1,091
North Dakota Renewable Resource Rider Accrued Res 872 56€
South Dakote— Asse-Based Margin Sharing Shortfi 40€ 33C
Minnesota Transmission Rider Accrued Rever 344 42C
Deferred Holding Company Formation Cao 234 24¢
MISO Schedule 16 and 17 Deferred Administrativet€— MN 18z 252
Plant Acquisition Cost 7 18
Accrued Cos-of-Energy (Refund) Revent (1,249 1,17¢
Total Regulatory Asse $127,32¢ $122,79.
Regulatory Liabilities
Accumulated Reserve for Estimated Removal C— Net of Salvage $ 59,44’ $ 58,93"
Deferred Income Taxe 4,79¢ 4,96¢
Deferred Marke-to-Market Gains 284 224
Other Regulatory Liabilitie 154 14¢
Total Regulatory Liabilitie: $ 64,68: $ 64,27
Net Regulatory Asset Positic $ 62,64 $ 58,51¢

The regulatory asset related to the unrecognizetition obligation, prior service costs and agaldosses on pensions and other
postretirement benefits represents benefit costsaatuarial losses subject to recovery througtsrasethey are expensed over the remaining
service lives of active employees included in tlamg. These unrecognized benefit costs and actl@sses are required to be recognized as
components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive leconequity under ASC 71&ompensation—Retirement Benefitst are eligible for
treatment as regulatory assets based on their Ipiobacovery in future retail electric rates.

All Deferred Marked-to-Market Gains and Losses rded as of March 31, 2010 are related to forwardipases of energy scheduled for
delivery through December 2013.

Unrecovered Project Costs — Big Stone Il are ciostgrred by OTP related to its participation in fil@anned construction of a 500- to 600-
megawatt generating unit at its Big Stone Plaet €n September 11, 2009 OTP announced its wittadrfm@m participation in the Big Stot

Il project due to a number of factors. OTP belietiescosts it incurred during its participatiorthe project are probable of recovery in future
rates and has deferred recognition of these cestperating expenses pending determination of exability by the state and federal
regulatory commissions that approve O3 Rites. No recovery period has been establishaddaecovery of these deferred costs as OTF
the initial phase of seeking recovery of thesescost
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through the regulatory process. If OTP is deni@dvery of any portion of these deferred costs, susts would be subject to expense in the
period they are deemed unrecoverable.

Minnesota Renewable Resource Rider Accrued Reveelats to revenues earned on qualifying 2008 &9 2enewable resource costs
incurred to serve Minnesota customers that havéeen billed to Minnesota customers as of Marci2810. Minnesota Renewable Resol
Rider Accrued Revenues are expected to be recoeserdhe next 48 months.

The regulatory assets and liabilities related téefred Income Taxes result from changes in stajutor rates accounted for in accordance
with ASC 740,Income Taxes

Debt Reacquisition Premiums included in UnamortiBetht Expense are being recovered from OTP custsmaar the remaining original
lives of the reacquired debt issues, the longesthich is 23 years.

Deferred Conservation Program Costs represent nwthdanservation expenditures and incentives reablethrough retail electric rates
over the next 15 months.

The Accumulated ARO Accretion/Depreciation Adjustiwill accrete and be amortized over the livepriperty with asset retirement
obligations.

General Rate Case Recoverable Expenses will begemi over the next 49 months.
MISO Schedule 16 and 17 Deferred Administrativet€es ND will be recovered over the next 32 months.

North Dakota Renewable Resource Rider Accrued Regerelate to revenues earned on qualifying 2088809 renewable resource cc
incurred to serve North Dakota customers that mtdeen billed to North Dakota customers as ofdd&1, 2010. North Dakota Renewable
Resource Rider Accrued Revenues are expectedrexbeered over the next 45 months.

South Dakota — Asset-Based Margin Sharing Shontégliesents a difference in OTP’s South Dakotaesbfactual profit margins on
wholesale sales of electricity from company-ownedeagating units and estimated profit margins frboseé sales that were used in
determining current South Dakota retail electriesaNet shortfalls or excess margins accumulatedally will be subject to recovery or
refund through future retail rate adjustments intBd)akota in the following year.

Minnesota Transmission Rider Accrued Revenuesxeated to be recovered over the next 9 months.
Deferred Holding Company Formation Costs will beoatized over the next 51 months.

MISO Schedule 16 and 17 Deferred Administrativet€es MN will be recovered over the next 8 months.
Plant Acquisition Costs will be amortized over ttext 2 months.

The Accrued Cost-of-Energy (Refund) is netted agfafrtcrued Utility and Cost-of-Energy Revenues atiltlbe credited to retail electric
customers over the next 17 months.

The Accumulated Reserve for Estimated Removal Gesh¢et of Salvage is reduced as actual removakarstincurred.

Other Regulatory Liabilities includes: 1) a portiohprofit margins on wholesales sales of purchagmeder subject to refund to South Dakota
customers through future retail rate adjustments2yra deferred gain on the sale of utility propénat will be paid to Minnesota retail
electric customers over the next 24 years.

If for any reason, OTP ceases to meet the criteriapplication of guidance under ASC 980 for alpart of its operations, the regulatory
assets and liabilities that no longer meet sudbréai would be removed from the consolidated baateet and included in the consolidated
statement of income as an extraordinary expensgome item in the period in which the applicatafrguidance under ASC 980 ceases.
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5. Forward Contracts Classified as Derivatives

Electricity Contracts

All of OTP’s wholesale purchases and sales of gnengler forward contracts that do not meet thenitédn of capacity contracts are
considered derivatives subject to mark-to-markebanting. OTP’s objective in entering into forwamhtracts for the purchase and sale of
energy is to optimize the use of its generatingtaaasmission facilities and leverage its knowledfeholesale energy markets in the region
to maximize financial returns for the benefit otlbds customers and shareholders. GiTiRtent in entering into certain of these consasto
settle them through the physical delivery of enextpen physically possible and economically feasi@i€P also enters into certain contracts
for trading purposes with the intent to profit fréluctuations in market prices through the timirfgparchases and sales.

As of March 31, 2010 OTP had recognized, on a pretsis, $2,652,000 in net unrealized gains on épevard contracts for the purchase
and sale of electricity. The market prices usedaloe OTP’s forward contracts for the purchasessabels of electricity and electricity
generating capacity are determined by survey oftayparties or brokers used by OTP’s power servpasonnel responsible for contract
pricing, as well as prices gathered from dailylegtent prices published by the Intercontinentallxge. For certain contracts, prices at
illiquid trading points are based on a basis sptegdeen that trading point and more liquid trading prices. These basis spreads are
determined based on available market price infaonand the use of forward price curve models. fRirevalue measurements of these
forward energy contracts fall into level 2 of tlaérfvalue hierarchy set forth in ASC 820-10-35.

The following tables show the effect of markingnarket forward contracts for the purchase andaaddectricity and the location and fair
value amounts of the related derivatives reportethe Company’s consolidated balance sheets asaofhivB1, 2010 and December 31, 2009,
and the change in the Company’s consolidated balsheet position from December 31, 2009 to Marci2810:

March 31, December 3:
(in thousands 2010 2009
Current Asse- Markec-to-Market Gain $ 11,20( $ 8,321
Regulatory Asse— Deferred Marke-to-Market Loss 13,30¢ 7,614
Total Asset: 24,50¢ 15,93¢
Current Liability— Markec-to-Market Loss (21,579 (14,687
Regulatory Liability— Deferred Marke-to-Market Gain (284) (224)
Total Liabilities (21,857 (14,909
Net Fair Value of Marke-to-Market Energy Contrac $ 2,652 $ 1,03(
Year-to-Date
(in thousands March 31, 201
Fair Value at Beginning of Yei $ 1,03(
Less: Amount Realized on Contracts Entered in0i@9 and Settled in 20: 12¢€
Changes in Fair Value of Contracts Entered int®009 —
Net Fair Value of Contracts Entered into in 200&adl of Perioc 904
Changes in Fair Value of Contracts Entered int20(h0 1,74¢
Net Fair Value End of Peric $ 2,652

The $2,652,000 in recognized but unrealized netsgan the forward energy and capacity purchasesaed marked to market on March 31,
2010 is expected to be realized on settlementtedsted over the following periods in the amouistied:

2nd Quarte 3rd Quarte 4th Quarte
(in thousands 2010 2010 2010 2011 2012 Total
Net Gain $ 1,20¢ $ 721 $ 81 $ 32 $ 321 $ 2,652

19




Table of Contents

Realized and unrealized net gains on forward eneogyracts of $1,825,000 for the three months ediacth 31, 2010 and $1,034,000 for
the three months ended March 31, 2009 are incliudetctric operating revenues on the Company’saclitiated statements of income.

OTP has credit risk associated with the nonperfocear nonpayment by counterparties to its forvearergy and capacity purchases and
sales agreements. We have established guidelindingits to manage credit risk associated with velsale power and capacity purchases and
sales. Specific limits are determined by a courarys financial strength. OTP’s credit risk witls iargest counterparty on delivered and
marked-to-market forward contracts as of March2R1L0 was $1,062,000. As of March 31, 2010 OTP haelt &redit risk exposure of
$2,038,000 from six counterparties with investngnaide credit ratings. OTP had no exposure at Mat¢l2010 to counterparties with credit
ratings below investment grade. Counterparties imibstment grade credit ratings have minimum ¢nedings of BBB- (Standard &

Poor’s), Baa3 (Moody’s) or BBB- (Fitch).

The $2,038,000 credit risk exposure includes nejarts due to OTP on receivables/payables from cetegbltransactions billed and unbilled
plus marked-to-market gains/losses on forward eotdrfor the purchase and sale of electricity seleeidfor delivery after March 31, 2010.
Individual counterparty exposures are offset adoortb legally enforceable netting arrangements.

Mark-to-market losses of $1,699,000 on certain PG derivative energy contracts included in th&,$23,000 derivative liability on

March 31, 2010 are covered by deposited fundsaesther of OTP’s derivative energy contracts agmprovisions that require an
investment grade credit rating from each of theamajedit rating agencies on OTP’s debt. If OF Bébt ratings were to fall below investm
grade, the counterparties to these forward enesgiracts could request immediate and ongoing fegrioight collateralization on contracts in
net liability positions. The aggregate fair valdealth forward energy derivative contracts with dtetisk-related contingent features that are in
a liability position on March 31, 2010 is $11,08H0for which OTP has posted $9,730,000 as codaberthe form of offsetting gain
positions on other contracts with its counterpartiader master netting agreements. If the cresktnélated contingent features underlying
these agreements were triggered on March 31, ZDIB,would have been required to post $1,333,0@@iditional collateral to its
counterparties. The remaining derivative liabiliglance of $8,811,000 relates to mark-to-markesele®n contracts that have no ratings
triggers or deposit requirements.

Fuel Contracts

In order to limit its exposure to fluctuations intdire prices of natural gas, IPH entered into @mtrwith a fuel supplier in December 2009
firm purchases of natural gas to cover portiongsodinticipated natural gas needs in Ririe, Iddinough August 2010 at fixed prices. These
contracts qualify for the normal purchase exceptiomark-to-market accounting under ASC 815-10-15.

Foreign Currency Exchange Forward Windows

The Canadian operations of IPH records its saldscarries its receivables in U.S. dollars but pts/expenses for goods and services
consumed in Canada in Canadian dollars. The payaietstbills in Canada requires the periodic exg®of U.S. currency for Canadian
currency. In order to lock in acceptable excharagesrand hedge its exposure to future fluctuaiiofisreign currency exchange rates betw
the U.S. dollar and the Canadian dollar, IPH’s G#arasubsidiary entered into forward contractstifierexchange of U.S. dollars into
Canadian dollars in 2008. Each monthly contract feaghe exchange of $400,000 U.S. dollars foragtmunt of Canadian dollars stated in
each contract. IPH’s Canadian subsidiary also edtrto forward contracts for the exchange of d@lars into Canadian dollars in

July 2009. Each monthly contract was for the exgleasf $200,000 U.S. dollars for the amount of Céaradollars stated in each contract.
contracts were settled as of December 31, 2009.

(in thousands Settlement Perioc USD CAD
Contracts Entered into in July 20 January 200— July 2008 $2,80( $2,91¢
Contracts Entered into in October 2( January 200— October 200¢ $4,00( $5,001
Contracts Entered Into in July 20 August 200¢— December 200 $1,00(¢ $1,16:

These contracts were derivatives subject to maikddket accounting. IPH did not enter into thesetiaets for speculative purposes or with
the intent of early settlement, but for the purpokcking in acceptable exchange rates and hgdtgrexposure to future fluctuations in
exchange rates. IPH settled these contracts dth@igstated settlement periods and used the pdsdeeay its Canadian liabilities when tl
came due. These contracts did not qualify for hedgeunting treatment
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because the timing of their settlements did nadcidie with the payment of specific bills or contraad obligations. The foreign currency
exchange forward contracts outstanding as of Malgl2009 were valued and marked to market on Mai¢t2009 based on quoted exche
values on March 31, 2009. Realized and unrealietdbsses on IPH’s foreign currency exchange fodwegndows of $144,000 for the three
months ended March 31, 2009, are included in Qtieme on the Company’s consolidated statemenitscome.

6. Common Shares and Earnings Per Share

Common Shares

Following is a reconciliation of the Company’s commshares outstanding from December 31, 2009 thraych 31, 2010:

Common Shares Outstanding, December 31, : 35,812,28
Issuances

Executive Officer Stock Performance Awa 34,76¢

Stock Options Exercise 2,80(
Retirements

Shares Withheld for Individual Income Tax Requireis (11,495
Common Shares Outstanding, March 31, 2 35,838,35

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share are calculatedviirdy earnings available for common shares bywleghted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Qiletrnings per common share are calculated bytadjusutstanding shares, assuming
conversion of all potentially dilutive stock optmrStock options with exercise prices greater tharmarket price are excluded from the
calculation of diluted earnings per common shaksted restricted shares granted to the Compdirgstors and employees are
considered dilutive for the purpose of calculatiligted earnings per share but are consideredragenily returnable and not outstanding for
the purpose of calculating basic earnings per shinderlying shares related to nonvested restristeck units granted to employees are
considered dilutive for the purpose of calculatiliigted earnings per share. Shares expected towlelad for stock performance awards
granted to executive officers are considered ditutor the purpose of calculating diluted earnipgs share.

Excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings phare are the following outstanding stock oggtimhich had exercise prices greater than
the average market price for the quarters endedtviat, 2010 and 2009:

Quarter Ended March 3 Options Outstandin Range of Exercise Prici
2010 390,21( $24.93- $31.3¢
2009 420,46( $24.93- $31.3¢

Common Stock Distribution Agreement

On March 17, 2010, the Company entered into a iDigion Agreement (the Agreement) with J.P. Mor@aturities Inc. (JPMS). Pursuan
the terms of the Agreement, the Company may ofidrsell its common shares from time to time throdBMS, as the Company’s
distribution agent for the offer and sale of thargls, up to an aggregate sales price of $75,000,000

Under the Agreement, the Company will designatertiremum price and maximum number of shares todbe through JPMS on any given
trading day or over a specified period of tradimgsl and JPMS will use commercially reasonabler&ffio sell such shares on such days,
subject to certain conditions. Sales of the shafresy, will be made by means of ordinary brokdrahsactions on the NASDAQ Global
Select Market at market prices or as otherwiseeayvath JPMS. The Company may also agree to satksito JPMS, as principal for its own
account, on terms agreed by the Company and JPMSéparate agreement at the time of sale. JPM&wdlive from the Company a
commission of 2% of the gross sales price per sloar@ny shares sold through it as the Compangsitution agent under the Agreement.

The Company is not obligated to sell and JPMS ibbgated to buy or sell any of the shares urtderAgreement. The shares, if issued,
be issued pursuant to the Company’s existing shglétration statement, as amended.
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7. Share-Based Payments

The Company has five shabased payment programs. No new stock awards wargegt under these programs in the first quart@oad. As
of March 31, 2010 the remaining unrecognized cormaton expense related to stock-based compensasismpproximately $5.0 million
(before income taxes) which will be amortized oaaveighted-average period of 1.9 years.

Amounts of compensation expense recognized undeCdmpany’s five stock-based payment programshiothree months ended March 31,
2010 and 2009 are presented in the table below:

Three months ende

March 31,

(in thousands 2010 2009
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (15% disco $ 69 $ 90
Restricted Stock Granted to Directi 14C 111
Restricted Stock Granted to Employ: 11¢€ 91
Restricted Stock Units Granted to Employ 60 121
Stock Performance Awards Granted to Executive ©f§i 222 43t

Totals $ 60¢ $ 84¢

9. Commitments and Contingencies

Sierra Club Complaint

On June 10, 2008 the Sierra Club filed a compiaitihe U.S. District Court for the District of SéuDakota (Northern Division) against the
Company and two other co-owners of Big Stone Geimgr&tation (Big Stone). The complaint allegedaierviolations of the Prevention of
Significant Deterioration and New Source Perfornga8tandards (NSPS) provisions of the Clean Air(@&A) and certain violations of the
South Dakota State Implementation Plan (South a&t®). The action further alleged the defendarmudified and operated Big Stone
without obtaining the appropriate permits, withmgeting certain emissions limits and NSPS requirgsn@nd without installing appropriate
emission control technology, all allegedly in viida of the CAA and the South Dakota SIP. The Si€tub alleged the defendants’ actions
have contributed to air pollution and visibility rmirment and have increased the risk of adversiéhheffects and environmental damage.
Sierra Club sought both declaratory and injunctelef to bring the defendants into compliance wtita CAA and the South Dakota SIP and
to require the defendants to remedy the allegeldtioms. The Sierra Club also seeks unspecifieill panalties, including a beneficial
mitigation project. The Company believes thesentdadre without merit and that Big Stone was armking operated in compliance with the
CAA and the South Dakota SIP.

The defendants filed a motion to dismiss the Si€ftdb complaint on August 12, 2008. On March 31028and April 6, 2009, the U.S.
District Court for the District of South Dakota (Mloern Division) issued a Memorandum and Order/Aameénded Memorandum and Order,
respectively, granting the defendants’ motion &miss the Sierra Club complaint. On April 17, 2088 Sierra Club filed a motion for
reconsideration of the Amended Memorandum Opinimh@rder. The Sierra Club motion was opposed byl#iendants. The Sierra Club
motion for reconsideration was denied on July ZB® On July 30, 2009 the Sierra Club filed a reoti€ appeal to the 8th U.S. Circuit Court
of Appeals. The briefing schedule calls for theeamt to submit its brief by mid-October, for afipes to submit their brief by mid-
November and for the appellant to submit its rdplef by the end of November. On October 13, 2008,United States Department
Justice filed a motion seeking a 30-day extensfahetime to file an amicus brief in support oétBierra Club’s position. The Court of
Appeals granted this motion, as well as the appgllsubsequent joint motion with the Sierra Clutierding the time to file the appellees’
brief and the Sierra Club’s reply brief. Briefinga&zcomplete on January 22, 2010 on filing of trexr&iClub’s reply brief. Oral arguments
before the Court of Appeals are scheduled for MBy2D10. The ultimate outcome of this matter catneotietermined at this time.

Federal Power Act Complaint

On August 29, 2008 Renewable Energy System Amerinas(RES), a developer of wind generation, aBAR Wind Development, LLC
(PEAK Wind), a group of landowners in Barnes Countgrth Dakota, filed a complaint with the FERGCeglihg that OTP and Minnkota
Power Cooperative, Inc. (Minnkota) had acted togeth violation of the Federal Power Act (FPA) eng RES and PEAK Wind access to
the Pillsbury Line, an interconnection facility vwhiMinnkota owns to interconnect generation prajdeing developed by OTP and NextEra
Energy Resources, Inc. (fka FPL Energy, Inc.)
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(NextEra). RES and PEAK Wind asked that (1) the EERder Minnkota to interconnect its Glacier Riggeject to the Pillsbury Line, or in
the alternative, (2) the FERC direct MISO to intemeect the Glacier Ridge project to the Pillsbuiiyel RES and Peak Wind also requested
that OTP, Minnkota and NextEra pay any costs aasetiwith interconnecting the Glacier Ridge Projedhe MISO transmission system
which would result from the interconnection of tilsbury Line to the Minnkota transmission systemd that the FERC assess civil
penalties against OTP. OTP answered the complaiSeptember 29, 2008, denying the allegations & Rfd PEAK Wind and requesting
that the FERC dismiss the complaint. On Octobe2088, RES and PEAK Wind filed an answer to OTR'swer and, restated the
allegations included in the initial complaint. RB&d PEAK Wind also added a request that the FER€En& both OTP’s waiver from the
FERC Standards of Conduct and its mafka&ted rate authority. On October 28, 2008, OTH &leeply, denying the allegations made by |
and PEAK Wind in its answer. By order issued ondmleer 19, 2008, the FERC set the complaint foringand established settlement
procedures. A formal settlement agreement was Vil the FERC requesting approval of the settlenaed withdrawal of the complaint. (
May 6, 2010 the FERC issued an order approvingdiilement and terminating the proceeding. Théese¢int did not have a material impact
on OTP’s financial position, results of operatiemsash flows.

Other

The Company is a party to litigation arising in titmrmal course of business. The Company reguladyyaes current information and, as
necessary, provides accruals for liabilities that@obable of occurring and that can be reasoredilynated. The Company believes the e
on its consolidated results of operations, findneieition and cash flows, if any, for the dispmsitof all matters pending as of March 31,
2010 will not be material.

10. Short-Term and Long-Term Borrowings

The following table presents the status of ourdin&credit as of March 31, 2010 and December G292

Restricted due t

In Use on Outstanding Lette Available on Available on

(in thousands Line Limit March 31, 201 of Credit March 31, 201 December 31, 20(
Otter Tail Corporation Credit Agreeme $200,00( $ 47,00( $ 14,29 $ 138,70! $ 179,75
OTP Credit Agreemer! 170,00( 63,49¢ 25C 106,25: 167,73!
Total $370,00C $ 110,49¢ $ 14,54¢ $ 244,95¢ $ 347,49

1 On January 4, 2010, OTP paid off the remaii$i68.0 million balance outstanding on its two-yé&5.0 million term loan that was
originally due on May 20, 2011, using lower cosida available under the OTP Credit Agreement. Gi@at incur any penalties for
the early repayment and retirement of this d

The Otter Tail Corporation Credit Agreement was adsel and restated effective May 4, 2010. See nbte- Bubsequent Events for further
details.
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The following table provides a breakdown of thegrement of the Company’s consolidated short-terch lang-term debt outstanding as of
March 31, 2010:

Otter Tail
Otter Tail Corporatior
(in thousands OTP Varistar Corporatiot Consolidate
Lines of Credi $ 63,49¢ $ 47,00( $ 110,49¢
Senior Unsecured Notes 6.63%, due December 1, 90,00( 90,00(
Pollution Control Refunding Revenue Bonds, VariaBl@0% at
March 31, 2010, due December 1, 2 10,40( 10,40(
9.000% Notes, due December 15, 2 $100,00( 100,00(
Senior Unsecured Notes 5.95%, Series A, due Ays2017 33,00( 33,00(
Grant County, South Dakota Pollution Control RefagdRevenue Bonc
4.65%, due September 1, 2C 5,12¢ 5,12¢
Senior Unsecured Note 8.89%, due November 30, 50,00( 50,00(
Senior Unsecured Notes 6.15%, Series B, due Aifyys2022 30,00( 30,00(
Mercer County, North Dakota Pollution Control Reding Revenue
Bonds 4.85%, due September 1, 2! 20,39( 20,39(
Senior Unsecured Notes 6.37%, Series C, due A@fs2027 42,00( 42,00(
Senior Unsecured Notes 6.47%, Series D, due AR§ys2037 50,00( 50,00(
Obligations of Varistar Corporation — Various uplt®.31% at
March 31, 201( $ 6,471 6,471
Total $280,91! $ 6,471 $150,00( $ 437,38t
Less:
Current Maturities — 91€ — 91¢€
Unamortized Debt Discoul — 38€ 6 392
Total Lon¢-Term Debt $280,91! $ 5,16¢ $149,99: $ 436,07t
Total Shor-Term and Lon-Term Debt (with current maturitie $344,41. $ 6,08t $196,99: $ 547,49:

11. Class B Stock Options of Subsidiary

As of March 31, 2010 there were 772 options forghechase of IPH Class B common shares outstamndihga combined exercise price of
$391,000. All 772 outstanding options were “in-theney”on March 31, 2010. A valuation of IPH Class B commnsbares in the first quart
of 2010 indicated a fair value of $2,485.60 persh@he book value of outstanding IPH Class B comstware options on March 31, 2010 is
based on an IPH Class B common share value of $88%er share.

12. Pension Plan and Other Postretirement Benefits

Pension Plan—Components of net periodic pension benefit coshefCompany’s noncontributory funded pension planas follows:

Three Months Ende

March 31,

(in thousands 2010 2009

Service Co—Benefit Earned During the Peri $ 1,24 $ 1,13t
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit Obligat 3,03( 2,97¢
Expected Return on Asse (3,400 (3,449
Amortization of Prio-Service Cos 17C 181
Amortization of Net Actuarial Los 49k 5
Net Periodic Pension Cao $ 1,542 $ 84¢

The Company did not make a contribution to its pEmplan in the three months ended March 31, 20@isinot currently required to mak
contribution in 2010.
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Executive Survivor and Supplemental Retirement PlaBomponents of net periodic pension benefit coshefCompany’s unfunded,
nonqualified benefit plan for executive officerslarertain key management employees are as follows:

Three Months Ende

March 31,
(in thousands 2010 2009
Service Co—Benefit Earned During the Peri $ 16t $ 18¢
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit Obligat 41¢€ 424
Amortization of Prio-Service Cos 18 18
Amortization of Net Actuarial Los 11¢ 96
Net Periodic Pension Ca $ 72C $ 72¢

Postretirement Benefits-Components of net periodic postretirement bemeft for health insurance and life insurance bé&nédi retired
OTP and corporate employees are as follows:

Three Months Ende

March 31,

(in thousands 2010 2009

Service Co—Benefit Earned During the Peri $ 42t $ 301
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit Obligat 775 758
Amortization of Transition Obligatio 187 187
Amortization of Prio-Service Cos 50 53
Amortization of Net Actuarial Los 18¢ 1
Effect of Medicare Part D Expected Subs (500 (297)
Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit C $ 1,12¢ $ 99¢

13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were usedtimate the fair value of each class of financistruments for which it is practicable to
estimate that value:

Cash and Shofferm Investments—The carrying amount approximates fair value beeaighe short-term maturity of those instruments.

Long-Term Debt—The fair value of the Company’s long-term del#stimated based on the current rates availablet€bmpany for the
issuance of debt. The Company’s long-term debtesiltp variable interest rates approximates fdineza

March 31, 201( December 31, 20C
Carrying Carrying
(in thousands Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Cash and Shc-Term Investment $ — $ — $ 4,432 $ 4,43
Long-Term Debt (436,079 (456,78 (436,17() (457,90)

15. Income Taxes

The Company'’s effective income tax rates for threeimonths ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 were dppately 33.5% and (46.0%),
respectively. Income taxes in the first quarte2@0 included a charge of $1.7 million relatedn® énactment of new federal health care
legislation in March 2010 which resulted in theersal of previously recognized deferred tax asdesgsto the elimination of the tax deduct
related to the Medicare Part D retiree drug subiffget by $1.8 million in production tax cred#ad North Dakota wind energy credits
related to OTP’s wind turbines. The reduction fritva federal statutory rate in the first quarter2@0mainly due to the recognition of
production tax credits and North Dakota wind endegycredits totaling $2.1 million.

The Company recognizes PTCs as wind energy is giteand sold based on a per kwh rate prescribagpiicable federal statutes, which
may differ significantly from amounts computed, @aquarterly basis, using an overall effective inedax rate
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anticipated for the full year. North Dakota winceegy credits are based on dollars invested in fyiradj facilities and are being recognized
a straight-line basis over 25 years. The Compaitigag this method of recognizing PTCs for spediéasons, including that PTCs are an
integral part of the financial viability of mostmd projects and a fundamental component of sucl pinjects’ results of operations.

17. Subsequent Events

Stock Incentive Awards—-On April 12, 2010 the Company’s Board of Directgranted 26,180 restricted stock units to key egg#s under
the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended (InceRtian), payable in common shares on April 8, 2@Hgldate the units vest. The grant date
fair value of each restricted stock unit was $1'p&6share based on the market value of the Con'gpaasnmon stock on April 12, 2010,
discounted for the value of the dividend exclusioer the four-year vesting period.

On April 12, 2010 the Company’s Board of Directgranted 24,800 shares of restricted stock to thegamy’s nonemployee directors and
31,600 shares of restricted stock to the Compaexesutive officers, including OTP’s president, untihe Incentive Plan. The restricted
shares vest 25% per year on April 8 of each yetrdrperiod 2011 through 2014 and are eligiblddtirdividend and voting rights. The grant
date fair value of each share of restricted stoak $21.835 per share, the average market prideeotiate of grant.

On April 12, 2010 the Company’s Board of Directgranted performance share awards to the Comparg&ugve officers under the
Incentive Plan. Under these awards, the Compamgsugive officers could earn up to an aggregatb46f800 common shares based on the
Company’s total shareholder return relative totthal shareholder return of the companies that cm@aphe Edison Electric Institute Index
over the performance period of January 1, 201Qutjindecember 31, 2012. The aggregate target sheamel & 73,400 shares. Actual
payment may range from zero to 200% of the targetuant. The executive officers have no voting olidbnd rights related to these shares
until the shares, if any, are issued at the entleperformance period. The grant date fair vafub®target amount common shares projected
to be awarded was $20.97 per share, as determittet & Monte Carlo simulation valuation method. Trens of these awards are such that
the entire award will be classified and accountedat a liability, as required under ASC 718-10185-and will be measured over the
performance period based on the fair value of tira at the end of each reporting period subsedodht grant date.

Federal Income Tax RefurdOn May 3, 2010 the Company received a federalmmetax refund of $42.3 million related to the cabpack of
2009 net operating losses for tax purposes to pears.

2010 Minnesota General Rate Case FiHR@TP filed a general rate case in Minnesota onlA&p2010 requesting an interim rate increase of
approximately 3.8% or $5.0 million in annual reveneffective June 1, 2010, and a final overall nateease of approximately 8.0% or $10.6
million in annual revenue. If approved by the MPUW@erim rates will remain in effect for all Minneta customers until the MPUC makes a
final determination on the request, which is expédb occur in 2011. If final rates are lower tligerim rates, OTP will refund Minnesota
customers the difference with interest.

Credit Agreement RenewatOn May 4, 2010 the Company entered into a $200anitbecond Amended and Restated Credit Agreentes
Credit Agreement) with the banks named thereiduiling U.S. Bank National Association, a nationahking association, as administrative
agent for the Banks and as Lead Arranger, Banknoédica, N.A. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National éiaion, as Co-Syndication
Agents, and KeyBank National Association, as Doausat@on Agent. The Credit Agreement amends anatesthe Company'$200 million
credit agreement dated as of December 23, 2008sardunsecured revolving credit facility that empany can draw on to support its
nonelectric operations. Borrowings under the CrAdittement bear interest at LIBOR plus 3.25%, suthifeadjustment based on the
Company’s senior unsecured credit ratings. The iCAggteement expires on May 4, 2013. The Credite®sgnent contains a number of
restrictions on the Company and the businesseantdr and its material subsidiaries, includingtrietions on their ability to merge, sell
assets, incur indebtedness, create or incur lieressets, guarantee the obligations of certairr péties and engage in transactions with
related parties. The Credit Agreement also coniaffiignative covenants and events of default. Thed@ Agreement does not include
provisions for the termination of the agreementeracceleration of repayment of amounts outstandire to changes in the Company’s
credit ratings. The Company’s obligations under@hnedit Agreement are guaranteed by Varistar anchéterial subsidiaries. Outstanding
letters of credit issued by the Company under ttei€ Agreement can reduce the amount availableédorowing under the line by up to
$50 million. The Credit Agreement has an accordéeaiure whereby the line can be increased to $2bi@mas described in the Credit
Agreement.
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Iltem 2. Managemerts Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operations
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Following is an analysis of our operating resultdhbsiness segment for the three months ended Mirck010 and 2009, followed by a
discussion of changes in our consolidated finarmaaition during the three months ended March B102and our expectations for the
remainder of 2010.

Comparison of the Three Months Ended March 31, 20102009

Consolidated operating revenues were $262.2 miftothe three months ended March 31, 2010 compaitbd$277.2 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2009. Operating income \W&9%illion for the three months ended March 311@compared with $8.6 million
for the three months ended March 31, 2009. The Gompecorded diluted earnings per share of $0.4thfothree months ended March 31,
2010 compared to $0.12 for the three months endediv31, 2009.

Amounts presented in the segment tables that fdidowperating revenues, cost of goods sold andratbnelectric operating expenses for
three month periods ended March 31, 2010 and 2008av agree with amounts presented in the codstdid statements of income due to
elimination of intersegment transactions. The anwohintersegment eliminations by income statenfinatitem are listed below:

Intersegment Eliminations (in thousands March 31, 201 March 31, 200
Operating Revenue
Electric $ 72 $ 62
Nonelectric 881 937
Cost of Goods Sol 751 84C
Other Nonelectric Expens 20z 15¢
Electric

Three Months Ende

March 31, %
(in thousands 2010 2009 Change Change
Retail Sales Revenu $81,01: $79,05¢ $ 1,95¢ 2.5
Wholesale Revenu« Company Generatio 3,992 4,40 (412 (9.9
Net Revenu«~ Energy Trading Activity 2,007 1,39: 614 44.1
Other Revenue 4,074 3,68¢ 38E 10.4
Total Operating Revenus $91,08¢ $88,54: $ 2,54% 2.6
Production Fue 20,90¢ 18,65¢ 2,25( 12.1
Purchased Pow«+ System Ust 12,05¢ 17,37: (5,319 (30.6)
Other Operation and Maintenance Exper 28,32: 26,93( 1,392 5.2
Depreciation and Amortizatic 10,031 8,98¢ 1,04¢ 11.7
Property Taxe 2,474 2,49( (16) (0.6)
Operating Incom $17,28¢ $14,10: $ 3,18i 22.€

The increase in retail sales revenues mainly istoltiee following: (1) a $1.7 million increase ievenues related to a general rate increase in
South Dakota which began in May 2009, (2) a $1 Hianiincrease in Minnesota resource recovery aadsmission rider revenues, (3) a
$0.9 million increase in North Dakota resource weey rider revenues, (4) a $0.5 million increas#linnesota Conservation Investment
Program (CIP) surcharge revenues, and (5) an addltMinnesota interim rate refund accrual of $®ibion in the first quarter of 2009,
partially offset by (6) a $2.1 million reduction lfuel Clause Adjustment revenues related to a deerim fuel and purchased power costs
incurred to serve retail customers, and (7) a 28¥sease in retail kilowatt-hour (kwh) sales redatea 9.6% reduction in heating-degree-
days between the quarters.
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Wholesale electric revenues from company-ownedrg¢ina decreased as a result of an 11.8% decreasledlesale kwh sales, partially
offset by a 2.7% increase in the average pricé&yérsold. Net revenue from energy trading activitigluding net mark-to-market gains on
forward energy contracts, increased mainly asaltrefan increase in net mark-to-market gains gaaed on forward purchases and sales of
electricity entered into in the first quarter ofl20and scheduled for settlement in the secondtardiduarters of 2010. The increase in other
electric revenues reflects a $0.2 million increasevenues from contracted services and a $0/mihcrease in transmission services
related revenue.

The increase in fuel costs is due to a 10.2% iserédakwhs generated from Otter Tail Power Compa(@TP’s) fuel-fired plants combined
with a 1.7% increase in the price of fuel per kvéimgrated. The decrease in purchased power — sysieim due to a 45.3% decrease in kwhs
purchased for retail sales, partially offset by6e02 increase in the cost per kwh purchased. Theedse in kwh purchases for system use is
due to an increase in kwhs generated at compang@pwlants in combination with a decrease in rétah sales.

The increase in other operation and maintenancensgs is due to higher Minnesota CIP recognizegrano costs, increased dues and
subscription expenses, wage increases for emplayetes union contracts and increases in reguldiling fees, insurance costs and storm
repair expenses.

The increase in depreciation expense is mainlytadtlee addition of 33 wind turbines at the LuveWdid Farm that were placed in service in
September 2009.

Plastics
Three Months Ende
March 31, %
(in thousands 2010 2009 Change Change
Operating Revenue $23,08: $13,53( $ 9,557 70.€
Cost of Goods Sol 19,49( 15,35 4,13¢ 27.C
Operating Expense 1,197 1,37t (17¢) (12.9
Depreciation and Amortizatic 781 71€ 65 9.1
Operating Income (Los: $ 1,61¢ $ (3,919 $ 5,532 141.¢

Operating revenues for the plastics segment inetkas result of a 42.4% increase in pounds of g combined with a 20.2% increase in
the price per pound of polyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipold. The increase in costs of goods sold waseetko the increase in pounds of pipe
sold partially offset by a 10.9% decrease in th&t per pound of pipe sold. The increased profitgtiletween the quarters was also impacted
by the sell-off of higher priced finished goodsémtory in the first quarter of 2009. The decreaseperating expenses related to reductions in
salary and benefit costs.
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Manufacturing
Three Months Ende
March 31, %
(in thousands 2010 2009 Change Change
Operating Revenue $78,57¢ $96,01¢ $(17,447) (18.2)
Cost of Goods Sol 61,95¢ 79,53t (17,577 (22.7)
Operating Expense 8,46¢ 10,04¢ (1,577%) (15.7)
Product Recall and Testing Co — 1,76¢€ (1,766 —
Depreciation and Amortizatic 5,821 5,35¢ 463 8.€
Operating Income (Los: $ 2,33( $ (686 $ 3,01¢ 439.5

The decrease in revenues in our manufacturing seigrelates to the following:

* Revenues at DMI Industries, Inc. (DMI) decrea$8® million as production activity was reducedrtatch customer delivery
schedules

* Revenues at BTD Manufacturing, Inc. (BTD) deceeb$4.7 million due to a decrease in sales vollthosvever, improved
productivity on work completed and increased pricescrap metal contributed to a $0.7 million i&se in operating income at
BTD.

* Revenues at T.O. Plastics, Inc. (T.O. Plasticgeimsed $0.5 million due to increased sales of tudttiral products

* Revenues at ShoreMaster, Inc. (ShoreMaster) deede$4.3 million mainly due to a lower volume ales of commercial products
but also due to reduced sales of residential pritsd

The decrease in cost of goods sold in our manufagtsegment relates to the following:
» Cost of goods sold at DMI decreased $8.7 millioma assult of decreased production levels and prtdiycimprovements

» Cost of goods sold at BTD decreased $5.1 millism result of decreased sales volume and bedsfiest quarter of 2009 included
a $1.1 million reduction in the price of finishedagls inventory

» Cost of goods sold at T.O. Plastics increased 8illibn as a result of increased sales of hortimalt products

» Cost of goods sold at ShoreMaster decreasedn$i8i®n mainly due to the decrease in sales of camuial products and $0.9 million
in additional costs incurred on a commercial projecthe first quarter of 200!

The net decrease in operating expenses, includiodypt recall and testing costs, in our manufaogusegment is due to the following:

» Operating expenses at DMI decreased $0.6 midl®a result of decreases in employee benefit aastseductions in insurance
expenses related to safety improvements. The deeedso reflects a $0.2 million loss on an asdetisahe first quarter of 200!

» Operating expenses at BTD decreased $0.5 milliothe first quarter of 2009, BTD spent $0.6 roitlion implementation of a
management program designed to improve productadgtgss the organization. No similar costs werarired in the first quarter of
2010.

» Operating expenses at T.O. Plastics increasedrfiillion mainly due to increased salary and berefsts related to new hires in
engineering and sales positio

» Operating expenses at ShoreMaster decreasednfiidh, reflecting a $1.8 million reduction in prtact recall and testing costs, a
$0.4 million reduction in bad debt expense and.4 $llion decrease in salary and payroll tax exgesn ShoreMaster’s first quarter
2009 expenses included $1.4 million in costs rdlédethe recall of certain trampoline products &3d} million in costs to test
imported products for lead/phthalate cont

Depreciation expense increased as a result of 2@0i¢al additions, mainly at DMI and BTD.
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Health Services

Three Months Ende

March 31, %
(in thousands 2010 2009 Change Change
Operating Revenue $25,17: $28,167 $ (2,996 (20.6)
Cost of Goods Sol 20,36¢ 22,137 1,770 (8.0)
Operating Expense 4,61¢ 5,08¢ (473 9.3
Depreciation and Amortizatic 1,104 99C 114 11.5
Operating Los! $ (919 $ (49 $ (86€) —

A $3.6 million decrease in revenues from scannimg)ather related services related to a 9.1% deelieascans performed combined with a
5.5% decrease in revenue per scan was partiabetoffy a $0.6 million increase in revenue from poént sales and servicing. The decrease
in cost of goods sold was directly related to therdases in sales revenue. The decrease in ogegapenses includes a $0.2 million gain on
sale of an asset in the first quarter of 2010 a#i.2 million reduction in sales and marketing sefaand expenses. The imaging side of the
business continues to be affected by less-thamnaptitilization of certain imaging assets. The @ase in depreciation expense reflects an
increase in owned equipment related to the purcbBassets coming off lease.

Food Ingredient Processing

Three Months Ende

March 31, %
(in thousands 2010 2009 Change Change
Operating Revenue $18,91¢ $20,08¢ $ (1,179 (5.9
Cost of Goods Sol 14,42¢ 15,98: (1,559 (9.7
Operating Expense 942 81z 13C 16.C
Depreciation and Amortizatic 1,167 1,041 12€ 12.1
Operating Incom $ 2,37¢ $ 2,25] $ 127 5.€

The decrease in food ingredient processing reveisulige to a 0.4% decrease in pounds of produdt sombined with a 5.5% decrease in
price per pound of product sold. The decrease st a@bgoods sold reflects a 9.4% decrease in thepar pound of product sold mainly due
a decrease in raw potato costs. The increase matipg expenses is mainly due to salary and beoceéit increases.

Other Business Operations

Three Months Ende

March 31, %
(in thousands 2010 2009 Change Change
Operating Revenue $26,30: $31,89¢ $ (5,597) a7.5)
Cost of Goods Sol 16,42 20,79t (4,379 (21.0
Operating Expense 12,517 10,86: 1,65¢ 15.2
Depreciation and Amortizatic 697 624 73 11.7
Operating Los: $ (3,339 $ (389 $ (2,949 (765.7)

The decrease in revenues in the other businesatapesy segment relates to the following:

* Revenues at Foley Company decreased $6.3 millierto a decrease in volume of completed projagsta unfavorable winter
weather conditions in the first quarter of 2010 paned to the first quarter of 20(

* Revenues at Aevenia, Inc. (Aevenia), our eleatdesign and construction services company, deedef0.9 million as a result of a
reduction in work volume
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* Revenues at E.W. Wylie Corporation (Wylie) incee $1.6 million as a result of a 34.7% increaseilas driven by company-
owned and ownw-operated trucks, partially offset by a 6.8% redarcin revenue per mile

The decrease in cost of goods sold in the othénésis operations segment relates to the following:

» Cost of goods sold at Foley Company decreasétrifion, mainly in the area of subcontractor sos$ Foley’s work volume was
down in the first quarter of 201

» Cost of goods sold at Aevenia decreased $0.6 mjllitainly due to a decrease in labor costs rela@dreduction of jobs in progre:

A reduction in construction activity due to the Bomic recession and related credit constraintddthto excess capacity in the construction
industry, resulting in a highly competitive biddiegvironment and lower margins on available work.

The increase in operating expenses in the othéndssoperations segment is due to the following:
» Operating expenses at Foley Company increased§illi@ between the quarters mainly for salaried arsurance
» Operating expenses at Aevenia increased $0.1 mitl@ween the quartel

» Operating expenses at Wylie increased $1.4 milhetween the quarters related to the increasel@s mriven by company-owned
and owner-operated trucks. Subcontractor expensesased $0.7 million as a result of a 57.1% irseéa miles driven by owner-
operated trucks. Labor costs increased by $0.5omi#ls a result of a 26.1% increase in miles driwewompany-owned trucks.
Equipment rental costs increased by $0.2 millioe tiuthe leasing of additional equipme

Corporate

Corporate includes items such as corporate stdfbaarhead costs, the results of our captive imagaompany and other items excluded
from the measurement of operating segment perfocma®orporate is not an operating segment. Ratieadded to operating segment totals
to reconcile to totals on our consolidated statdmehincome.

Three Months Ende

March 31, %
(in thousands 2010 2009 Change Change
Operating Expense $ 3,23 $ 2,61(C $ 62z 23.¢
Depreciation and Amortizatic 144 10C 44 44.C

The increase in corporate operating expenses teflecincrease in general and administrative exqgeredated to increased employee benefit
costs.

Interest Charges

Interest charges increased $2.8 million in the flreee months of 2010 compared with the firstehmeonths of 2009 as a result of a

$94.1 million increase in the average balance ofiterm debt outstanding combined with an incré@aske average rate of interest paid on
outstanding long-term debt between the quarters.O0décember 2009 issuance of $100 million of 9.0008tes, due 2016 contributed

$2.3 million to the increase in interest expensss/ben the quarters.

Other Income

Other income decreased $0.5 million in the firseéhmonths of 2010 compared with the first threatin® of 2009 as a result of foreign
currency transaction losses incurred in the Canagierations of DMI and Idaho Pacific Holdings,.I®H) in the first quarter of 2010
related to fluctuations in foreign currency exchangtes between the Canadian and U.S. dollar dthisnquarter.

31




Table of Contents

Income Taxes

Income taxes increased $3.8 million in the firstiger of 2010 compared with the first quarter dd2@s a result of the following: (1) a

$4.1 million increase in income before income tax2pa charge of $1.7 million in the first quartér2010 related to the enactment of new
federal health care legislation in March 2010 whiesulted in the reversal of previously recognideterred tax assets due to the elimination
of the tax deduction for retiree prescription dhgmefits that qualify for the Medicare Part D midrug subsidy, and (3) the benefit of
production tax credits (PTCs) and North Dakota wenérgy credits related to OTP’s wind projectspgraximately $1.8 million in the first

of quarter of 2010 and $2.1 million in the firstapfarter of 2009.

Our effective income tax rates for the three momttded March 31, 2010 and 2009 were approximat&i98 and (46.0%), respectively. Our
effective income tax rate for the three months dridarch 31, 2010 was increased by the $1.7 miltloarge related to the enactment of new
federal health care legislation in March 2010. Réidns from the federal statutory rate reflect ble@efit of the PTCs and North Dakota wind
energy credits in the respective quarters. Fegeoaluction tax credits are recognized as wind gnergenerated based on a per kwh rate
prescribed in applicable federal statutes. Nortkddmwind energy credits are based on dollars tedeis qualifying facilities and are being
recognized on a straight-line basis over 25 years.

FINANCIAL POSITION
The following table presents the status of ourdin&credit as of March 31, 2010 and December Q292

In Use or Restricted due t Available on Available on
March 31, Outstandin¢ March 31, December 31
(in thousands Line Limit 2010 Letters of Credi 2010 2009
Otter Tail Corporation Credit Agreeme $200,00 $ 47,00( $14,29¢ $138,70! $179,75!
OTP Credit Agreemer! 170,00( 63,49¢ 25C 106,25: 167,73!
Total $370,00(  $110,49¢ $14,54¢ $244,95( $347,49(

1 On January 4, 2010, OTP paid off the remaining.@®illion balance outstanding on its two-years $7/million term loan that was
originally due on May 20, 2011, using lower cosida available under the OTP Credit Agreement. Gi@hat incur any penalties for
the early repayment and retirement of this d

We believe we have the necessary liquidity to ¢iffety conduct business operations for an externmgibd if current market conditions
continue. Our balance sheet is strong and we arempliance with our debt covenants. Our divideagqut ratio for the year ended
December 31, 2009 was 168% compared to 108% and@69te years ended December 31, 2008 and 208Fectvely. Our current
indicated annual dividend would result in a dividgrer share of $1.19 in 2010. The determinatioth@famount of future cash dividends tc
declared and paid will depend on, among other #)ingr financial condition, cash flows from opevas, the level of our capital expenditu
restrictions under our credit facilities and outufie business prospects.

Financial flexibility is provided by operating cabws, unused lines of credit, strong financiatermages, solid credit ratings, and alternative
financing arrangements such as leasing. We betiavé&inancial condition is strong and that our gasgther liquid assets, operating cash flc
existing lines of credit, access to capital marleetd borrowing ability because of solid creditmgt, when taken together, provide adequate
resources to fund ongoing operating requiremerdsanre capital expenditures related to expaneifogxisting businesses and development
of new projects. Equity or debt financing will kequired in the period 2010 through 2014 given ttgaasion plans related to our electric
segment to fund construction of new rate base tmests, in the event we decide to reduce borrowimgier our lines of credit, refund or
retire early any of our presently outstanding deltumulative preferred shares, to complete adiisi or for other corporate purposes.

DMI has a $40 million receivable purchase agreemémgreby designated customer accounts receivabjebmaold to General Electric
Capital Corporation on a revolving basis. The agreet expires in March 2011. Accounts receivablaliiog $10.8 million were sold in the
first quarter of 2010. Discounts, fees and comnaissicharged to operating expense for the threehmartded March 31, 2010 and 2009 v
$32,000 and $175,000, respectively. The balanceagfivables sold that was outstanding to the bagexf March 31, 2010 was $5.8 million.
The sales of these accounts receivable are redlest@ reduction of accounts receivable in ouraateted balance sheets and the proceeds
are included in the cash flows from operating ati¢ig in our consolidated statement of cash flows.
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Cash used in operating activities was $22.7 milfanthe three months ended March 31, 2010 compai#dcash provided by operating
activities of $21.9 million for the three monthsded March 31, 2009. The $44.6 million decreaseperating cash flows is mainly due to
increases of $21.0 million in costs in excess bihigis, $20.5 million in accounts receivable and$lmillion in inventories in the first quart
of 2010.

Net cash used in investing activities was $18.lionilfor the three months ended March 31, 2010 ameqgh with $28.8 million for the thre
months ended March 31, 2009. Cash used for capifsnditures decreased by $9.1 million betweemtizeters mainly due to a $9.5 million
decrease in capital expenditures in the manufagjiségment related to first quarter 2009 capitdltahs at DMI and BTD. Capital
expenditures in the first quarter of 2010 incluée7dmillion at OTP and $6.2 million in the heald#ngces segment. Capital expenditures in
the health services segment included the purcHasgaging assets coming off lease.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $36ibion for the three months ended March 31, 26a@thpared with $2.2 million for th
three months ended March 31, 2009. Proceeds from-&rm borrowings and checks written in excessash of $106.2 million in the first
quarter of 2010 compared to proceeds from shamt-tesrrowings of $14.1 million in the first quari@2009. We paid $58.4 million to retire
long-term debt in the first quarter of 2010 complaee$1.0 million in the first quarter of 2009. Beeds from short-term borrowings and
checks written in excess of cash of $106.2 milliothe first quarter of 2010 were used to retirdye$58 million in long-term debt used to
finance construction of 33 wind turbines at the &une Wind Farm, to finance first quarter 2010 amkpenditures and to fund a portion of
the increase in working capital items in the fiearter of 2010.

Our “Operating Lease Obligations” reported in thielé on page 53 of our Annual Report on FornK1for the year ended December 31, 2
have increased by $0.2 million for 2010 and $1.lienifor 2011 and 2012 related to an agreemenétew a lease for rail cars to transport
coal to Hoot Lake Plant from September 2010 throtigbust 2012.

Our operating cash flow and access to capital nisidan be impacted by macroeconomic factors outsideontrol. In addition, our
borrowing costs can be impacted by changing inteetes on short-term and long-term debt and ratasgigned to us by independent rating
agencies, which in part are based on certain cnegitsures such as interest coverage and leveragg fldhere can be no assurance that any
additional required financing will be availabledhgh bank borrowings, debt or equity financing threowise, or that if such financing is
available, it will be available on terms acceptables. If adequate funds are not available on@abée terms, our businesses, results of
operations and financial condition could be adJgraffected.

On May 11, 2009 we filed a shelf registration statat with the Securities and Exchange Commissiaeuwhich we may offer for sale,

from time to time, either separately or togetheary combination, equity, debt or other securitiescribed in the shelf registration statement.
On March 17, 2010, we entered into a Distributiagréement (the Agreement) with J.P. Morgan Secasritie. (JPMS). Pursuant to the terms
of the Agreement, we may offer and sell our commslaares from time to time through JPMS, as ouritigion agent for the offer and sale
the shares, up to an aggregate sales price of 78@0. Under the Agreement, we will designatentimum price and maximum number
shares to be sold through JPMS on any given tradtiygor over a specified period of trading days, #BMS will use commercially
reasonable efforts to sell such shares on such dalgect to certain conditions. We are not obédab sell and JPMS is not obligated to buy
or sell any of the shares under the Agreement.ddarance can be given that we will sell any ofst@res under the Agreement, or, if we do,
as to the price or amount of shares we sell, od#tes when such sales will take place. The shifiesued, will be issued pursuant to our
shelf registration statement, as amended.

On May 4, 2010 we entered into a $200 million SecAmended and Restated Credit Agreement (the ChAgplgement) with the banks
named therein, including U.S. Bank National Assticig a national banking association, as admirtisgraagent for the Banks and as Lead
Arranger, Bank of America, N.A. and JPMorgan Charek, National Association, as Co-Syndication Ageahd KeyBank National
Association, as Documentation Agent. The Credite®gnent amends and restates our $200 million cagdiiement dated as of December 23,
2008, and is an unsecured revolving credit faciligt we can draw on to support our nonelectricajns. Borrowings under the Credit
Agreement bear interest at LIBOR plus 3.25%, sulifipadjustment based on our senior unsecuredteaditigs. The Credit Agreement
expires on May 4, 2013. The Credit Agreement costainumber of restrictions on us and the busisesfSéaristar and its material
subsidiaries, including restrictions on their apito merge, sell assets, incur indebtedness,em@ancur liens on assets, guarantee the
obligations of certain other parties and engagdeaimsactions with related parties. The Credit Agreet also contains affirmative covenants
and events of default. The Credit
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Agreement does not include provisions for the taation of the agreement or the acceleration ofynegat of amounts outstanding due to
changes in our credit ratings. Our obligations uride Credit Agreement are guaranteed by Varistdriis material subsidiaries. Outstanding
letters of credit issued by us under the Creditegnent can reduce the amount available for borgwirder the line by up to $50 million.
The Credit Agreement has an accordion feature vidyete line can be increased to $250 million asudesd in the Credit Agreement.

OTP is the borrower under the $170 million crediteeement referred to in the table above (the OTRIICAgreement) with an accordion
feature whereby the line can be increased to $28@mas described in the OTP Credit Agreemente Thedit agreement was entered into
between OTP and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., WellgaFBank, National Association and Merrill LynchiB@USA, as Banks, U.S. Bank
National Association, as a Bank and as agent foBtinks, and Bank of America, N.A., as a Bank an8yadication Agent. The OTP Cre
Agreement is an unsecured revolving credit factlitgt OTP can draw on to support the working capigads and other capital requirements
of its operations. Borrowings under this line cddit bear interest at LIBOR plus 0.5%, subjectdjustment based on the ratings of the
borrower’s senior unsecured debt. The OTP CredieAgent contains a number of restrictions on treniess of OTP, including restrictions
on its ability to merge, sell assets, incur inddhgss, create or incur liens on assets, guardmasbtigations of any other party, and engag
transactions with related parties. The OTP Creditet&@ment also contains affirmative covenants aedtswof default. The OTP Credit
Agreement does not include provisions for the taation of the agreement or the acceleration ofynegant of amounts outstanding due to
changes in the borrower’s credit ratings. The OTE&JE Agreement is subject to renewal on July 31,12 The OTP Credit Agreement is an
obligation of OTP.

In November 2009, OTP paid down $17 million oftit®-year, $75 million term loan, originally due Mag, 2011. OTP paid off the
remaining $58 million balance in January 2010 usavger cost funds available under the OTP Credite&gnent. OTP did not incur any
penalties for the early repayments and retiremgtitie debt.

On May 3, 2010 we received a federal income taxrefof $42.3 million related to the carry-back 602 net operating losses for tax
purposes to prior years. The majority of these $undre used to repay borrowings under the OTP Chggleement.

The note purchase agreement relating to the $9®mé.63% senior notes due December 1, 2011, anded (the 2001 Note Purchase
Agreement), the note purchase agreement relatitfget$50 million 8.89% senior note due November281,7, as amended (the Cascade
Purchase Agreement), and the note purchase agreezteimg to the $155 million senior unsecuredesassued in four series consisting of
$33 million aggregate principal amount of 5.95%i8eblnsecured Notes, Series A, due 2017; $30 miliggregate principal amount of
6.15% Senior Unsecured Notes, Series B, due 2022n#llion aggregate principal amount of 6.37% ®etinsecured Notes, Series C, due
2027; and $50 million aggregate principal amour.di7% Senior Unsecured Notes, Series D, due 263&@mended (the 2007 Note Purchase
Agreement) each states that the applicable obiigoyr prepay all or any part of the notes issuecktieger (in an amount not less than 10% of
the aggregate principal amount of the notes théstanding in the case of a partial prepaymentpad of the principal amount prepaid,
together with accrued interest and a make-wholeuatnd&ach of the Cascade Note Purchase Agreemdrnhar2001 Note Purchase
Agreement states in the event of a transfer atyifissets put event, the noteholders thereunder thee right to require the applicable obligor
to repurchase the notes held by them in full, togetvith accrued interest and a make-whole amaumthe terms and conditions specified in
the respective note purchase agreements. The 20@7/Rurchase Agreement states the applicable oltigst offer to prepay all of the
outstanding notes issued thereunder at 100% qdrtheipal amount together with unpaid accrued edem the event of a change of contrc
such obligor. The 2001 Note Purchase AgreemenR@0& Note Purchase Agreement and the CascadePNothase Agreement each con

a number of restrictions on the applicable obligiod its subsidiaries. These include restrictiontherobligor’s ability and the ability of the
obligor’s subsidiaries to merge, sell assets, ereatncur liens on assets, guarantee the obligaitdd any other party, and engage in
transactions with related parties. Our obligationder the Cascade Note Purchase Agreement remaiargeed by Varistar and certain of its
material subsidiaries.
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Financial Covenants

As of March 31, 2010 the Company was in compliamitk the financial statement covenants that exigtéts debt agreements.

None of the Credit and Note Purchase Agreementsitgnany provisions that would trigger an acceienaof the related debt as a resul
changes in the credit rating levels assigned todlaed obligor by rating agencies.

Our borrowing agreements are subject to certaamfital covenants. Specifically:

. Under the Credit Agreement, we may not permitrttie of our Interest-bearing Debt to Total Calgitetion to be greater than 0.60 to
1.00 or permit our Interest and Dividend CoveragéidXo be less than 1.50 to 1.00 (each measuredconsolidated basis), as provit
in the Credit Agreemen

. Under the Cascade Note Purchase Agreement, wenatgermit our ratio of Consolidated Debt to Cditkded Total Capitalization to
be greater than 0.60 to 1.00 or our Interest Clsa@perage Ratio to be less than 1.50 to 1.00 (e@etsured on a consolidated basis),
permit the ratio of OTP’s Debt to OTP’s Total Cafitation to be greater than 0.60 to 1.00, or peRriority Debt to exceed 20% of
Varistar Consolidated Total Capitalization, as fded in the Cascade Note Purchase Agreer

. Under the OTP Credit Agreement, OTP may not pettmai ratio of its Interest-bearing Debt to TotalpRalization to be greater than
0.60 to 1.00 or permit its Interest and Dividend/@age Ratio to be less than 1.50 to 1.00, as ¢geovin the OTP Credit Agreeme

. Under the 2001 Note Purchase Agreement, the R@®& Purchase Agreement and the financial guaiastyance policy with Ambac
Assurance Corporation relating to certain pollut@mtrol refunding bonds, OTP may not permit theoraf its Consolidated Debt to
Total Capitalization to be greater than 0.60 tdJ0permit its Interest and Dividend Coverage &éir, in the case of the 2001 Note
Purchase Agreement, its Interest Charges Coveratie)Ro be less than 1.50 to 1.00, in each cageasded in the related borrowing
or insurance agreement. In addition, under the 208t& Purchase Agreement and the 2007 Note Puréigaeement, OTP may not
permit its Priority Debt to exceed 20% of its ToGalpitalization, as provided in the related agre®n

Our ratings at March 31, 2010 were:

Moody's Investor Standarc
Otter Tail Corporatioi Service Fitch Ratings & Poor's
Corporate Credit/Lor-Term Issuer Default Ratir Baa3 BBB- BBB-
Senior Unsecured De Baa3 BBB- BB+
9.000% Notes Due 201 Bal BBB- BB+
Outlook Stable Stable Stable

Moody's Investor Standarc
Otter Tail Power Compar Service Fitch Ratings & Poor's
Corporate Credit/Lor-Term Issuer Default Ratir A3 BBB BBB-
Senior Unsecured De A3 BBB+ BBB-
Outlook Stable Stable Stable

Our disclosure of these securities ratings is mecammendation to buy, sell or hold our securitid@wvngrades in these securities ratings
could adversely affect our company. Downgradesctodrease our borrowing costs resulting in possibtluctions to net income in future
periods and increase the risk of default on out dbbgations.

We do not have any off-balance-sheet arrangemerisyomaterial relationships with unconsolidatetitirs or financial partnerships.
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2010 EXPECTATIONS

The statements in this section are based on ouerduvutiook for 2010 and are subject to risks anckrtainties described under “Forward
Looking Information — Safe Harbor Statement Under Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

We reaffirm our 2010 diluted earnings per shareetan the range of $1.00 to $1.40. This guidanceesickers the cyclical nature of some of
businesses and reflects challenges presented tnteconomic conditions, as well as our planssirategies for improving operating results
as the economy recovers. Our current consolidapilat expenditures expectation for 2010 is inrdmege of $75 million to $85 million. This
compares with $177 million of capital expendituie2009. We continue to explore investments in gatien and transmission projects for
electric segment that could have a positive impaabur earnings and returns on capital in the &tur

Contributing to our earnings guidance for 2010theefollowing:

. We expect lower levels of net income from ouckle segment in 2010. This decrease is due tarmoed soft wholesale power
markets, lower AFUDC earnings as there are no leogstruction projects expected this year, andeemed operating and
maintenance expense in 2010 due primarily to highgsloyee benefit costs. Expectations for 201@cefn interim rate increase of
approximately $2.9 million in revenue in the Minogsjurisdiction. OTP filed for a revenue increas&linnesota on April 2, 2010
requesting an interim rate increase of 3.8%, apprately $5.0 million in annual revenue, effectivmd 1, 2010, and a final overall
rate increase of 8.0%, approximately $10.6 miliioannual revenue

. We expect our plastics segment’s 2010 performémaaprove from 2009 results, with net earninga/rexpected to be in a range
from $0.7 million to $1.5 million

. We expect earnings from our manufacturing segrmemprove in 2010 as a result of the followil
o] Improved earnings are expected at BTD in 2010 dysrdductivity improvements and cost reductions enad2009

o} A reduction in net losses is expected at &dasster in 2010 given the restructuring of cosés ttcurred in 2009. ShoreMaster
continues to be affected by current depressed esicreonditions and does not expect any signifigeaprovement to overall
business conditions until later in the cycle ofremmic recovery

o} Improved earnings are expected at DMI in 280€ to a better backlog of business in 2010 antiraeed improvements in
productivity from cost controls implemented in 20

o  Slightly better earnings are expected at T. O.tR&& 2010 compared with 20C

o] Backlog in place in the manufacturing segnieapproximately $217 million for the remainder26f10 compared with
$152 million one year ag:

. We expect increased net income from our healtricas segment in 2010. In an effort to right-staefleet of imaging assets, health
services is not renewing leases on a large nunfbaraging assets that come off lease in 2010. Willgesult in a lower level of
rental costs in 201(

. We now expect net income from our food ingredigntpssing business in 2010 to be in the range ofifion to $7 million.

. We expect our other business operations segmératvie improved earnings in 2010 compared with 2B@@klog in place for the
construction businesses is $85 million for the rexaber of 2010 compared with the same amount oneaga

. We expect corporate general and administrativesdosteturn to more normal levels in 20
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Critical Accounting Policies Involving Significafistimates

The discussion and analysis of the financial statémand results of operations are based on ogotdated financial statements, which h
been prepared in accordance with accounting pilieigenerally accepted in the United States of Agaefhe preparation of these
consolidated financial statements requires managetoenake estimates and judgments that affeatgperted amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses, and related disclosurentihgent assets and liabilities.

We use estimates based on the best informatiotediain recording transactions and balances lieguitom business operations. Estimates
are used for such items as depreciable lives, aspairment evaluations, tax provisions, colledigbof trade accounts receivable, self-
insurance programs, unbilled electric revenuesuagctrenewable resource and transmission ridentese valuations of forward energy
contracts, service contract maintenance costseptxge-of-completion and actuarially determinedefiencosts and liabilities. As better
information becomes available or actual amountkaosvn, estimates are revised. Operating resuttdeaaffected by revised estimates.
Actual results may differ from these estimates umliféerent assumptions or conditions. Managemaistdiscussed the application of these
critical accounting policies and the developmenthese estimates with the Audit Committee of tharBlaf Directors. A discussion of critic
accounting policies is included under the captiGritical Accounting Policies Involving Significalstimates” on pages 58 through 62 of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddzem31, 2009. There were no material changes ficaraccounting policies or
estimates during the quarter ended March 31, 2010.

GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT

We currently have $12.2 million of goodwill and $4nillion in nonamortizable trade names recordedwnbalance sheet related to the
acquisition of ShoreMaster and its subsidiary camgsm ShoreMaster produces and markets residamiatommercial waterfront equipme
ranging from boatlifts and docks for lakefront peoly to full commercial marina projects. The busmbas experienced reduced demand for
its products due to the recent economic recessidrhas incurred net losses. We considered thesrssddevelopments in the business to be
an indicator of potential impairment of ShoreMastgoodwill and other intangible assets.

Based on our goodwill review in January 2010, wectaded that no impairment charge was necessargviots occurred in the first quarter
of 2010 that would change our current conclusianthe impairment of this goodwill. We continue tomitor ShareMaster’s business
conditions for any triggering event that would caus to accelerate our goodwill review from ournalktesting timeframes. If current
economic conditions continue to impact the amoftisites of waterfront products and ShoreMastepisnccessful with reorganizing and
streamlining its business to improve operating nmgrgccording to our projections, the reductionariticipated cash flows from this business
may indicate, in a future period, that its fairuals less than its carrying amount resulting inngpairment of some or all of the goodwill and
nonamortizable intangible assets associated witheBaster along with a corresponding charge agesustings.

ShoreMaster’s operating plan calls for modest raeegrowth in 2010 in line with growth in gross datie product. With the cost reduction
efforts that have occurred over the past yeardaation in net losses is expected by ShoreMast201®. Given the nature of ShoreMaster’s
products and the markets it serves, our operatamsmssume revenue and earnings growth will begiecur in 2011. These revenue growth
assumptions are consistent with ShoreMaster’sigstiogrowth rates before the recent economic dammtinherent in these assumptions is
that ShoreMaster’'s manufacturing capacity utilizativill increase from current utilization of 40%approximately 70% of capacity for the
year ending 2014. ShoreMaster is expecting itsedérse to grow during this period of time whicheasonable given its historic ability
grow its dealer base. ShoreMaster has not experieaigy deterioration in its dealer base duringett@nomic downturn. ShoreMaster
continues to be affected by current depressed @sicrzonditions, as evidenced by lower revenue @fittst quarter of 2010 compared with
the first quarter of 2009 and internal expectatifumghe first quarter of 2010.

The weighted average cost of capital used forahaysis was 13.3% which is reflective of the riskeerent in ShoreMaster’s industry. This
compares with the previous weighted average cosajpital of 12% which was used in our 2008 annoaldgvill review for ShoreMaster. We
used a terminal value growth rate of 3% in thigoiisited cash flow analysis.
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The operating plan with its assumptions shows d¢hiewiing:

(in thousands

Enterprise Valut $48,60(
Interest Bearing Del 36,50(
Market Value of Common Equil 12,10(
Book Value of Common Equil 12,00(
Excess of Market Value over Book Val $ 10C

The following changes in our assumptions would hhaeefollowing impact on these estimated values:

Impact on Fair Valu

Assumption Change (in thousands
Annual Revenue Growth Ra Plus 1% $ 3,70C
Annual Revenue Growth Ra Minus 1% (3,600
Annual Gross Margi Plus 1% 3,80(
Annual Gross Margil Minus 1% (3,800
Discount Rate Plus .5% (2,200
Discount Rate Minus .5% 2,40(

Should the assumptions used in these operating platnrmaterialize and the market value of Shoredtastommon equity be significantly
below its book value, an impairment charge of uf1@.1 million could be recorded.

We currently have $12.0 million of goodwill and $0nillion in nonamortizable trade names recordedwnbalance sheet related to the
acquisition of BTD and its subsidiary companiesDBrovides stamped metal parts and fabricated npedalucts to a number of equipment
and product manufacturers and assemblers througiheinited States. We expect BTD to return to 2@8@&nue and earnings levels by
2012. If current economic conditions continue tpact sales of manufactured metal products and BTt able to achieve sales and
earnings consistent with 2008 levels as projedtedreductions in anticipated cash flows from thisiness may indicate, in a future period,
that its fair value is less than its carrying vatasulting in an impairment of some or all of tleodwill and nonamortizable intangible assets
associated with BTD along with a corresponding gaaxgainst earnings.

No events occurred in the first quarter of 201Q tauld change our current conclusions on the inmpait of this goodwill. We continue
monitor BTD’s business conditions for any triggerignvent that would cause us to accelerate our giladwiew from our normal testing
timeframes.

An impairment charge consisting of the goodwill armhamortizable intangible assets of both Shoredastd BTD combined would not
have a significant impact on our financial positamd would not put us in violation of our debt coapts.

We evaluate goodwill for impairment on an annuai®and as conditions warrant. As of December B292n assessment of the carrying
amounts of our goodwill indicated no impairment #mel fair values of our remaining reporting units aubstantially in excess of their
respective book values.
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Forward Looking Informatior— Safe Harbor Statement Under the Private Secutittegtion Reform Act of 1995

In connection with the “safe harbor” provisionstloé Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 59@he Act), we have filed cautionary
statements identifying important factors that cozddse our actual results to differ materially frimose discussed in forward-looking
statements made by or on behalf of the Company nWked in this Form 10-Q and in future filings bg Company with the Securities and

Exchange Commission, in our press releases anistatements, words such as “may”, “will", “expegcanticipate”, “continue”,

"o "o«

“estimate”, “project”, “believes” or similar expreigns are intended to identify forward-looking staents within the meaning of the Act and
are included, along with this statement, for pugsosf complying with the safe harbor provisiontof Act.

The following factors, among others, could causeastual results to differ materially from thosealissed in the forward-looking statements:

. We are subject to federal and state legislatieguilations and actions that may have a negatipadon our business and results of
operations

. Federal and state environmental regulation couddire us to incur substantial capital expenditamed increased operating cos

. Volatile financial markets and changes in our dalihgs could restrict our ability to access cdgtad could increase borrowing cc
and pension plan and postretirement health carersgs

. We rely on access to the capital markets as saf liquidity for capital requirements not sfigd by cash flows from operations. If
we are not able to access capital at competititesraur ability to implement our business plany eadversely affecte

. Disruptions, uncertainty or volatility in the &incial markets can also adversely impact our resdilbperations, the ability of our
customers to finance purchases of goods and senaoé our financial condition, as well as exeswnward pressure on stock prices
and/or limit our ability to sustain our current coon stock dividend leve

. The value of our defined benefit pension plaretssdeclined significantly in 2008 due to volaglguity markets. Asset values
increased in 2009 and we made a $4 million dismnetiy contribution to the pension plan in 2009h# market value of pension plan
assets declines again as in 2008 or does not seasaprojected and relief under the Pension Rimte&ct is no longer granted, we
could be required to contribute additional captitathe pension plan in future yea

. Any significant impairment of goodwill would cauaalecrease in our asset values and a reductiasr imeb operating performanc

. A sustained decline in our common stock pric@Wwdbook value or declines in projected operatirghdéoows at any of our operating
companies may result in goodwill impairments thaild adversely affect our results of operations famghcial position, as well as
credit facility covenants

. Economic conditions could negatively impact ouribesses
. If we are unable to achieve the organic growth wgeet, our financial performance may be adverstgcted.

. Our plans to grow and diversify through acquisit and capital projects may not be successfutiwtuld result in poor financial
performance

. Our plans to acquire additional businesses and grmhoperate our nonelectric businesses couldbied by state lawn

. The terms of some of our contracts could expode usforeseen costs and costs not within our cgniitich may not be recoveral
and could adversely affect our results of operatiamd financial conditior

. We are subject to risks associated with energy etsi

. Certain of our operating companies sell productsottssumers that could be subject to res

. Competition is a factor in all of our business

. We may experience fluctuations in revenues apemeses related to our electric operations, which caase our financial results to
fluctuate and could impair our ability to make dtstitions to our shareholders or scheduled payrmamtsur debt obligation:
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. In September 2009, OTP announced its withdrawal participating utility and the lead developartfee planned construction of a
second electric generating unit at its Big StorenPsite. As of March 31, 2010 OTP had incurred.$43illion in costs related to the
project. OTP has deferred recognition of thesescastoperating expenses pending determinatiorcofegability by the state and
federal regulatory commissions that approve itssalf OTP is denied recovery of all or any portafrthese deferred costs, such ¢
would be subject to expense in the period theydasmed to be unrecoverat

. Actions by the regulators of the electric segnuentid result in rate reductions, lower revenuabsearnings or delays in recovering
capital expenditure:

. OTP could be required to absorb a disproportmshtre of costs for investments in transmissitrmastructure required to provide
independent power producers access to the trariemizsd. These costs may not be recoverable thr@uansmission tariff and
could result in reduced returns on invested capitdlor increased rates to C's retail electric customer

. OTP’s electric generating facilities are subjecbperational risks that could result in unschedyllant outages, unanticipated
operation and maintenance expenses and increasgn parchase cost

. Fluctuations in wholesale electric sales and procesd result in earnings volatilit

. Wholesale sales of electricity from excess gdimraould be affected by reductions in coal shiptad¢o the Big Stone and Hoot
Lake plants due to supply constraints or rail tpamtation problems beyond our contt

. Changes to regulation of generating plant emissimcluding but not limited to carbon dioxide OG") emissions, could affect our
operating costs and the costs of supplying eléttric our customers

. Our plastics segment is highly dependent on adohmumber of vendors for PVC resin, many of whac located in the Gulf Coast
regions, and a limited supply of resin. The losa &ky vendor, or an interruption or delay in thp@y of PVC resin, could result in
reduced sales or increased costs for this busi

. Our plastic pipe companies compete against & laugnber of other manufacturers of PVC pipe andufsaturers of alternative
products. Customers may not distinguish the pipepamie’ products from those of its competito

. Reductions in PVC resin prices can negativelydot®VVC pipe prices, profit margins on PVC pipesalnd the value of PVC pipe
held in inventory

. Competition from foreign and domestic manufaatsiréhe price and availability of raw materialsictiuations in foreign currency
exchange rates and general economic conditionsl edfdct the revenues and earnings of our manufagtbusinesse:

. Changes in the rates or method of thpedty reimbursements for diagnostic imaging sesvimauld result in reduced demand for tr
services or create downward pricing pressure, whichld decrease revenues and earnings for ourhhsaivices segmer

. Our health services businesses may be unablintimoe to maintain agreements with Philips Medfoain which the businesses
derive significant revenues from the sale and serof Philips Medical diagnostic imaging equipmt

. Technological change in the diagnostic imagirdustry could reduce the demand for diagnostic imgagervices and require our
health services operations to incur significantEts upgrade equipmet

. Actions by regulators of our health services apens could result in monetary penalties or restms in our health services
operations

. Our food ingredient processing segment operatashighly competitive market and is dependentaegaate sources of potatoes for
processing. Should the supply of potatoes be a&fdieloy poor growing conditions, this could negatnieipact the results of
operations for this segmel

. Our food ingredient processing business could bersély affected by changes in foreign currencyharge rates
. A significant failure or an inability to properbid or perform on projects by our constructiom@nufacturing businesses could lead
to adverse financial resuli
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosureswtMarket Risk

At March 31, 2010 we had exposure to market risloeisted with interest rates because we had $4ifliomin short-term debt outstanding
subject to variable interest rates that are indeaddBOR plus 2.375% under our $200 million revialy credit facility and $63.5 million in
short-term debt outstanding subject to variablergtt rates that are indexed to LIBOR plus 0.5%u@ilP’s $170 million revolving credit
facility. At March 31, 2010 we had exposure to aesnin foreign currency exchange rates. DMI haketarsk related to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates at its plant in Fort EDigtario because the plant pays its operating exgseinsCanadian dollars. Outstanding trade
accounts receivable of the Canadian operationBldfdre not at risk of valuation change due to chariig foreign currency exchange rates
because the Canadian company transacts all sdleSirdollars. However, IPH does have market ridlted to changes in foreign currency
exchange rates because approximately 12.1% of &4 & the first quarter of 2010 were outsideUinéed States and the Canadian
operation of IPH pays its operating expenses ira@em dollars.

The majority of our consolidated long-term debt figsd interest rates. The interest rate on vaeiahte long-term debt is reset on a periodic
basis reflecting current market conditions. We ng@naur interest rate risk through the issuancéxefifrate debt with varying maturities,
through economic refunding of debt through optimefiindings, limiting the amount of variable intetreate debt, and the utilization of short-
term borrowings to allow flexibility in the timingnd placement of long-term debt. As of March 31,(@&e had $10.4 million of long-term
debt subject to variable interest rates. Assumimghange in our financial structure, if variableenest rates were to average one percentage
point higher or lower than the average variable cat March 31, 2010, annualized interest expendg@geitax earnings would change by
approximately $104,000.

We have not used interest rate swaps to managxpesure to interest rate changes related to atfiopo of borrowings. We maintain a ra

of fixed-rate debt to total debt within a certaéimge. It is our policy to enter into interest rassactions and other financial instruments only
to the extent considered necessary to meet o@dstdijectives. We do not enter into interest natesactions for speculative or trading
purposes.

The plastics companies are exposed to marketelaked to changes in commodity prices for PVC igdime raw material used to
manufacture PVC pipe. The PVC pipe industry is lyigiensitive to commodity raw material pricing \iligy. Historically, when resin prices
are rising or stable, sales volume has been higietmwhen resin prices are falling, sales volumasbiegn lower. Operating income may
decline when the supply of PVC pipe increases fasten demand. Due to the commodity nature of P&inrand the dynamic supply and
demand factors worldwide, it is very difficult togulict gross margin percentages or to assume istatibal trends will continue.

The companies in our manufacturing segment aresexpto market risk related to changes in commaatites for steel, lumber, aluminum,
cement and resin. The price and availability ostheaw materials could affect the revenues andreggof our manufacturing segment.

OTP has market, price and credit risk associatéld ferward contracts for the purchase and saldesticity. As of March 31, 2010 OTP had
recognized, on a pretax basis, $2,652,000 in netalimed gains on open forward contracts for thelpase and sale of electricity and
electricity generating capacity. Due to the natfrelectricity and the physical aspects of the teleity transmission system, unanticipated
events affecting the transmission grid can cawsesimission constraints that result in unanticipgi@ds or losses in the process of settling
transactions.

The market prices used to value OTP’s forward emt$rfor the purchases and sales of electricityedatricity generating capacity are
determined by survey of counterparties or broksesliby OTP’s power services’ personnel respon§ibleontract pricing, as well as prices
gathered from daily settlement prices publishedheyintercontinental Exchange and NYMEX. For cer@intracts, prices at illiquid trading
points are based on a basis spread between tHatgnaoint and more liquid trading hub prices. Thbasis spreads are determined based on
available market price information and the useoofvrd price curve models. The forward energy sabedracts that are marked to market as
of March 31, 2010, are 100% offset by forward eggrgrchase contracts in terms of volumes and dsfigeriods but not in terms of delive
points. The differential in forward prices at thiffatent delivery locations currently results imeark-to-market unrealized gain on OSRiper
forward contracts.

We have in place an energy risk management polityagoal to manage, through the use of definrddmanagement practices, price risk
and credit risk associated with wholesale poweclpases and sales. With the advent of the MISO Day 2
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market in April 2005, we made several changes teeaergy risk management policy to recognize newiig opportunities created by this
new market. Most of the changes were in new volamEnits and loss limits to adequately manageribks associated with these new
opportunities. In addition, we implemented a Vati®isk (VaR) limit to further manage market pritgk. There was price risk on open
positions as of March 31, 2010 because the operhpses were not at the same delivery points aspibie sales.

The following tables show the effect of markingnarket forward contracts for the purchase andsfadéectricity on our consolidated balal
sheet as of March 31, 2010 and the change in mgotidated balance sheet position from Decembe2@d9 to March 31, 2010:

Year-to-Date
(in thousands March 31, 201(
Fair Value at Beginning of Yei $1,03(
Less: Amount Realized on Contracts Entered int®0i09 and Settled in 20: 12¢
Changes in Fair Value of Contracts Entered int®0d09 —
Net Fair Value of Contracts Entered into in 200&atl of Perioc 904
Changes in Fair Value of Contracts Entered int®0h0 1,74¢
Net Fair Value End of Peric $2,65:

The $2,652,000 in recognized but unrealized netsgan the forward energy and capacity purchasesaed marked to market on March 31,
2010 expected to be realized on settlement as stdtedver the following periods in the amountselist

2nd Quarte 3rd Quartel 4th Quartel
(in thousands 2010 2010 2010 2011 2012 Total
Net Gain $1,20¢ $721 $81 $32C $321 $2,65:

OTP has credit risk associated with the nonperfocear nonpayment by counterparties to its forvearergy and capacity purchases and
sales agreements. We have established guidelindingits to manage credit risk associated with velsale power and capacity purchases and
sales. Specific limits are determined by a courarys financial strength. OTP’s credit risk witls iargest counterparty on delivered and
marked-to-market forward contracts as of March2RL0 was $1,062,000. As of March 31, 2010 OTP haelt &redit risk exposure of
$2,038,000 from six counterparties with investngnaide credit ratings. OTP had no exposure at Mat¢l2010 to counterparties with credit
ratings below investment grade. Counterparties imilbstment grade credit ratings have minimum ¢nedings of BBB- (Standard &

Poor’s), Baa3 (Moody's) or BBB- (Fitch).

The $2,038,000 credit risk exposure includes nejarts due to OTP on receivables/payables from cetegbltransactions billed and unbilled
plus marked-to-market gains/losses on forward eotdrfor the purchase and sale of electricity seleeidfor delivery after March 31, 2010.
Individual counterparty exposures are offset adoortb legally enforceable netting arrangements.

IPH has market risk associated with the price ef @il and natural gas used in its potato dehydnapirocess as IPH may not be able to
increase prices for its finished products to recavereases in fuel costs. In order to limit itgpegure to fluctuations in future prices of natural
gas, IPH entered into contracts with a fuel suppfiedecember 2009 for firm purchases of natural tgacover portions of its anticipated
natural gas needs in Ririe, Idaho through Augud02iX fixed prices. These contracts qualify formloemal purchase exception to mark-to-
market accounting under Accounting Standards Geatifin 815-10-15.

Iltem 4. Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participationh&f Company’s management, including the Chief Ettee Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer, the Company evaluated the effectivenegb@fdesign and operation of its disclosure costaold procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 193d Ekchange Act)) as of March 31, 2010, the enti®faeriod covered by this report. Ba:

on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer &tdef Financial Officer concluded that the Compardisclosure controls and procedures
were effective as of March 31, 2010.

During the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2010reheere no changes in the Companyiternal control over financial reporting (asided ir
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that haveerialy affected, or are reasonably likely to miethy affect, the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Sierra Club Complaint

On June 10, 2008 the Sierra Club filed a compiaitihe U.S. District Court for the District of Stubakota (Northern Division) against the
Company and two other co-owners of Big Stone Geimgr&tation (Big Stone). The complaint allegedaierviolations of the PSD and

NSPS provisions of the CAA and certain violatiofishe South Dakota SIP. The action further allededdefendants modified and opers

Big Stone without obtaining the appropriate permitithout meeting certain emissions limits and NS$&guirements and without installing
appropriate emission control technology, all altigen violation of the CAA and the South Dakot@PSThe Sierra Club alleged the
defendants’ actions have contributed to air padlutind visibility impairment and have increasedrtble of adverse health effects and
environmental damage. The Sierra Club sought bettadatory and injunctive relief to bring the defants into compliance with the CAA

and the South Dakota SIP and to require the deféada remedy the alleged violations. The SiermabGllso seeks unspecified civil penalt
including a beneficial mitigation project. The Coamy believes these claims are without merit antiBigaStone was and is being operated in
compliance with the CAA and the South Dakota SIP.

The defendants filed a motion to dismiss the Si€ttd complaint on August 12, 2008. On March 3102@and April 6, 2009, the U.S.
District Court for the District of South Dakota (Mloern Division) issued a Memorandum and Order/Aameénded Memorandum and Order,
respectively, granting the defendants’ motion sndss the Sierra Club complaint. On April 17, 2008 Sierra Club filed a motion for
reconsideration of the Amended Memorandum Opinimh@rder. The Sierra Club motion was opposed byl&iendants. The Sierra Club
motion for reconsideration was denied on July ZBX® On July 30, 2009 the Sierra Club filed a reoti€ appeal to the 8th U.S. Circuit Court
of Appeals. The briefing schedule called for thpellant to submit its brief by mid-October, for @lipes to submit their brief by mid-
November and for the appellant to submit its rdpigf by the end of November. On October 13, 2@08,United States Department
Justice filed a motion seeking a 30-day extensfdhetime to file an amicus brief in support oétBierra Club’s position. The Court of
Appeals granted this motion, as well as the appgllsubsequent joint motion with the Sierra Clutigading the time to file the appellees’
brief and the Sierra Club’s reply brief. Briefingaazcomplete on January 22, 2010 on filing of trer&iClub’s reply brief. Oral arguments
before the Court of Appeals are scheduled for MBy2D10. The ultimate outcome of this matter cafmeotietermined at this time.

Federal Power Act Complaint

On August 29, 2008 Renewable Energy System Amerinas(RES), a developer of wind generation, aBAR Wind Development, LLC
(PEAK Wind), a group of landowners in Barnes Countgrth Dakota, filed a complaint with the FERGCegiihg that OTP and Minnkota
Power Cooperative, Inc. (Minnkota) had acted togeth violation of the Federal Power Act (FPA) ng RES and PEAK Wind access to
the Pillsbury Line, an interconnection facility vwhiMinnkota owns to interconnect generation prajéeting developed by OTP and NextEra
Energy Resources, Inc. (fka FPL Energy, Inc.) (Eex}. RES and PEAK Wind asked that (1) the FER@Iokinnkota to interconnect its
Glacier Ridge project to the Pillsbury Line, ortive alternative, (2) the FERC direct MISO to intemgect the Glacier Ridge project to the
Pillsbury Line. RES and Peak Wind also requestatd@TP, Minnkota and NextEra pay any costs asstiaith interconnecting the Glacier
Ridge Project to the MISO transmission system whaohld result from the interconnection of the Rillsy Line to the Minnkota transmissi
system, and that the FERC assess civil penaltiggstgOTP. OTP answered the complaint on Septe2the2008, denying the allegations of
RES and PEAK Wind and requesting that the FERC idisthe complaint. On October 14, 2008, RES andKPBAnd filed an answer to
OTP’s answer and, restated the allegations includd#ue initial complaint. RES and PEAK Wind alsdded a request that the FERC rescind
both OTP’s waiver from the FERC Standards of Cohdnd its market-based rate authority. On OctoBeRR08, OTP filed a reply, denying
the allegations made by RES and PEAK Wind in isngar. By order issued on December 19, 2008, thed~&4R the complaint for hearing
and established settlement procedures. A formtésetnt agreement was filed with the FERC requgsijpproval of the settlement and
withdrawal of the complaint. On May 6, 2010 the KERsued an order approving the settlement andrnating the proceeding. The
settlement did not have a material impact on OTiRancial position, results of operations or casiws.

Other

The Company is the subject of various pending matened legal actions and proceedings in the argicourse of its business. Such matters
are subject to many uncertainties and to outcohmsgsare not predictable with assurance. The Compaaords a liability in its consolidated
financial statements for costs related to claimeluiding future legal costs, settlements and
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judgments, where it has assessed that a losshalgimand an amount can be reasonably estimatedC@mpany believes the final resolut
of currently pending or threatened legal actiorns proceedings, either individually or in the aggreg will not have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s consolidated financial positi@suits of operations or cash flows.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

There has been no material change in the riskraset forth under Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factoosi’ pages 29 through 35 of the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwem31, 2009.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities drd of Proceeds

The Company does not have a publicly announced segirchase program. The following table showsrmoom shares that were surrende
to the Company by employees to pay taxes in comoreatith shares issued for stock performance awgrdsted to executive officers under
the Company’s 1999 Stock Incentive Plan:

Total Number o Average Price Pai
Calendar Montt Shares Purchast per Share

January 201! — —
February 201! 11,49¢ $22.71
March 201C — —

Total 11,49¢

Iltem 6. Exhibits

10.1 Distribution Agreement Dated March 17, 2010 betwegter Tail Corporation and J.P. Morgan Securities (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Forr-K filed by Otter Tail Corporation on March 17, 20:

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causisdeport to be signed on its behalf by
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

OTTER TAIL CORPORATION

By: /s/ Kevin G. Moug
Kevin G. Moug
Chief Financial Officer
(Chief Financial Officer/Authorized Officer

Dated: May 7, 2010
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit Number Description
10.1 Distribution Agreement Dated March 17, 2010 betw®dter Tail Corporation and J.P. Morgan Securitines (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Fori-K filed by Otter Tail Corporation on March 17, 20:
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, John D. Erickson, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report omrrd.0-Q of Otter Tail Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statetsy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officardal are responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls andgahaies, or caused such disclosure controls an@guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durithg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finaheporting, or caused such internal control diancial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeatepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regdis disclosure controls and procedures and presentais report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change inrdgistrant’s internal control over financial refiiog that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officardal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiafuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and mateviedaknesses in the design or operation of intemmatrol over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigteaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, tmatilves management or other employees who haygnéisant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 7, 2010

/s/ John D. Erickson
John D. Erickson
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kevin G. Moug, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report omrrd.0-Q of Otter Tail Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statetsy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officardal are responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls andgahaies, or caused such disclosure controls an@guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durithg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finaheporting, or caused such internal control diancial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeatepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regdis disclosure controls and procedures and presentais report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change inrdgistrant’s internal control over financial refiiog that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officardal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiafuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and mateviedaknesses in the design or operation of intemmatrol over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigteaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, tmatilves management or other employees who haygnéisant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 7, 2010

/sl Kevin G. Moug
Kevin G. Moug
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Otter T@drporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipé ended March 31, 2010 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, John D. Ericksongestdent and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®b0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tHeaSas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
2.

The information contained in the Reportl§agresents, in all material respects, the findmadition and results of operations of the
Company

/s/ John D. Erickson
John D. Erickson

President and Chief Executive Offic
May 7, 201C




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Otter T@drporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipé ended March 31, 2010 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, Kevin G. Moug, Chighancial Officer and Treasurer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®b0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tHeaSas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Reportl§apresents, in all material respects, the finadmadition and results of operations of the
Company

/sl Kevin G. Moug
Kevin G. Moug

Chief Financial Officer
May 7, 2010




